
To, 
The Members of 

D MAND COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

!call Support Services Private Limited 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2025 

1. Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of !call Support 
Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Company" or "the holding company") and 
its subsidiary, (together referred to as "the group"), which comprise of the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at March 31,2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
fo r the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated Ind AS Finari.cial Statements, including a 
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 as amended (" the Act") in the manner so required and give a h·ue and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India: 

(a) ln the case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 
March 31, 2025; 

(b) In the case of Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), 
of the consolidated loss for the year ended on March 31, 2025; 

(c) In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated statement of change in 
equity, its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated change in equity for the year ended on 
March 31, 2025. 

2. Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the "Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the company 
in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements under the provisions bf the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provid • 
our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Group. 
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3. Other Information 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. We have been 
provided with the other information included in the Director's Report and Annexure thereto, which 
did not include the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our 
opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information 
referred to above and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In c01mection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Based on the audit work we have performed; we have nothing to report in this regard. 

4. Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that give a 
lTue and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, changes 
in equity of the group and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India and other applicable Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2023, as amended. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial conh·ols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the group are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the group are also responsible for 
overseeing the group's financial reporting process. 



5. Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal conh·ol. 

• With respect to the adequacy of the internal conh·ols over financial reporting of the company and 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in' A1mexure B'. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 
represent the underlying h·ansactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the 
financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial 
statements of which we are the independent auditors. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the holding company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 



among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters commw1icated with those charged with gove1nance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such commwucation. 

6. Other Matters 

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of the subsidiary 
company, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs. 7,661.72 Lakhs as at 31 March 2025, 
and total income of Rs. 16,864.22 Lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs. 1292.57 Lakhs for the year ended 
on that date. These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other 
auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditors' reports have been 
furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far 
as it relates to the amow1ts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report 
in terms of sub-sections (3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries 
, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors. 

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulat01y Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
"A1mexure-A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements 

• 
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive in.come), Consolidated statement of change in equity and the Consolidated Cash 
Flow Statement for the year ended on 31 March, 2025, dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act to the extent applicable, read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as amended. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding company 
as on 31 March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company, none 
of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on 31 March, 2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal conh·ols over financial reporting of the company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in" Aimexure B". 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, during the year Company and its 
subsidiary have not paid any managerial remuneration to its directors. Accordingly reporting 
relation to provisions of section 197 of the Act is not applicable. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) 

ii) 

iii) 

iv) 

The group does not have any pending litigation which would have impact on its 
consolidated financial position. 

The group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative conh·acts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

There were no amow1ts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the group. 

a) The respective managements of the Holding company and its subsidiary have represented 
that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the holding company or its subsidiary to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall: 
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I. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any maimer 
whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Company or 

II. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

b) The respective mai1agements of the Holding company and its subsidiary have 
represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the 
holding company or its subsidiary from any persons or entities, including foreign entities 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company shall: 

I. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in ai1y 
maimer whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Party or 

IL provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under subclause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

v) There was no dividend declared or paid during the year by the holding company and its 
subsidiary. Therefore, the compliance with the provisions of section 123 of the companies 
Act, 2013 is not applicable to them. 

3. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account 
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit h·ail (edit log) facility is 
applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 
ll(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025. Based on our examination which included test checks, the group has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit 
lTail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant h·ansactions 
recorded in the software. Furthermore, the audit trails has been preserved by the Holding 
Company and above referred subsidiaries as per the statutory requirement for record retention. 

For D MAND Q MiNY 
Chartered~t,~a ts 
Fir~ '(J' ,;on o.: 022527N 

Dheeraj Mehta 
(Parl11er) 
Membership No: 504305 
UDIN: 25504305BMKYRJ8217 

Place: Gurgaon 
Date: 12th May 2025 
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors" Report 

Referred to in paragraph 11 of Independent Auditors' report of even date to the Members of Icall 
Support Services Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year 
ended 31st March, 2025 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies 
(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

For D M AND COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

F;;t 
Dheeraj Mehta 
Partner 

t-1-~lt> • ·- .fbY'.J.o~ 

~Q"l, 

IA /HE~ ' . 
-::;;-a ~ • Place: Gurgaon 

Date: 121h May, 2025 



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Icall Support Services 
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal conh·ol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial conh·ols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 

Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial 
conh·ols and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial conh·ols over financial reporting was established and maintained 

and if such conlTols operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial conh·ols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 

financial conh·ols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 

risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assess I ent of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial conh·ol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial conh·ol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 

being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of the subsidiary 

company, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs. 7,661.72 Lakhs as at 31 March 2025, 

and total income of Rs. 16,864.22 Lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs. 1292.57 Lakhs for the year ended 
on that date. These financial statement and other financial in.formation have been audited by other 

auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditors' reports have been 

furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far 

as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report 
in terms of sub-sections (3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries 

, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of conh·ols, material misstatements due 

lo error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial conh·ols over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial conh·ols 

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025 based on the internal control over financial reportin.g criteria 
es tablished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Dheeraj Mehta 
Parh1er 

M No 504305 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: 12th May 2025 



lca ll Support Serv ices Private Limited 

Consolidate Balance Sheet as at Marc h 31, 2025 

Part iculars 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Right-of-use assets 
Goodwill 
Financial assets 

(i) Other financial assets 
Income tax assets (net) 
Tota l non-current assets 

Current assets 

Financial assets 
(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other financia l assets 

Other current assets 
Tota l cu rrent assets 

Tota l assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity Share capital 
Other Equity 
Total equity 
Liabil ities 

Non-current liab ili ties 
Financial liabi li ties 

(i) Lease liabilities 
Provisions 
Other non-current liabi liti es 
Tota l non-current liabil it ies 

Current liabil ities 
Fi nancial Liabi lities 

Notes 

4(a) 
4(b) 
4(c) 

6(e) 
5 

6(a) 
6(b) 
6(c) 
6(d) 
6(e) 

7 

8(a) 
8(b) 

4(b) 
9 
II 

(i) Lease liabilities 4(b) 
(ii) Trade payables 
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises I0(a) 
(b) total outstanding other than (ii) (a) above I0(a ) 
(iii) Other financ ial liabi lities IO(b) 

Provisions 9 
Other current liabi li ties 12 
Total current liabi li ties 

Tota l liabil ities 

Tota l eq uity and liabi lities 

({ in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

222.18 225 .12 
730.30 847.00 
138.02 

728.11 28.51 
194.06 228.54 

2,012.67 1,329. 17 

55.85 451.19 
3,950.36 889.2 1 
6,638.22 37.79 

I. I I 
1,286.87 3.73 

345.45 137.61 
12,277.86 1,519.53 

14,290.53 2,848.70 

502.37 182.37 
6,466.22 1,3 16.95 
6,968.59 1,499.32 

806.11 892.26 
55.79 35.16 
20.14 

882.04 927.42 

86.15 70.24 

10 18 3.61 
5,687.00 63 .94 

453.04 22 1.30 
67.37 22.2 1 

136.16 40.66 
6,439.90 421.96 

7,321.94 1,349.38 

14,290.53 2,848.70 

The above Consolidated Balance Sheet should be read in conj unction with the accompanyi ng notes. 

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date. 

0 
For D M And Company 

; ~~l'''''N __..,.,. __ 

Dheeraj Mehta 
Partner 
Membership No. 504305 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 12, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Yashish D1!!,-
Di rector 
DIN : 00706336 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 12, 2025 

Manoj Sharma 
Director 
DIN : 02745526 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 12, 2025 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
Other income · 
Total income 

Expenses: 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 
Advertising and promotion expenses 
Network and internet expenses 
Other expenses 
Tota l expenses 

Profit before tax 

r ncome tax expense : 
Current tax 
Deferred·tax 

Tota l tax expense 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) 
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss 
Exchange differences on translation or foreign operations 

ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations loss 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share: [face value per share~ 100 (March 3 1, 2024: ~ 100)) 

Basic (in~) 
Diluted (in ~) 

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss refen·ed to in our report or even date. 

For D M And p mpany 
Finn Registration Number: 022527N 

~\J( 
Dheeraj Mehta 
Partner 
Membership No. 504305 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 12, 2025 

Notes 

13 
14 

15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

2 1(a) 
2 l(b) 

8(b) 

9 

22 
22 

Year ended 
Ma rch 31, 2025 

(tin Lakhs) 

2 1, 199.10 
224.95 

21,424.05 

4,682.55 
93.30 

242.50 
13, 146.00 

336.55 
1,498.62 

19,999.52 

1 424.53 

186.4 1 

186.41 

1,238.12 

17.37 

(3. 16) 

14.21 

1,252.33 

262.49 
262.49 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

(tin Lakhs) 

2,943.62 
48.94 

2,992.56 

2,2 15.8 1 
99.66 

210.05 
0.16 
6.78 

95.77 
2,628.23 

364.33 

130.54 

130.54 

233.79 

(6.19) 

(6.19) 

227.60 

124.8 1 
124.81 

For and on behalfof the Board of Directors 

shish Dahiya 
irector 

DIN : 00706336 

Place: Gurugrarn 
Date: May 12, 2025 

Manoj Shanna 
Director 
DIN : 02745526 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 12, 2025 



kall Su[Jport Sen"ice.s Pri,·:tte Limiletl 
Con.solitla ted St,1tement of Cash Flows fu r the , ·car ended i\tarch 31, 2025 

P:1rticula rs 

A.Ca.sh flow from opcratin;! activilics 

Prufit before t.1 x 

Adjustmeuts fo r ; 

Depreciation ,rnd amorti1 .. atio11 c:,pcnse 

Employee share-l)ased payment expense 

Profit on s.1 le of property. plam aud cquipmeut 

Interest iueome - On b;rnk deposi ts 

luterest Income - U11wi 11di11g of di scount - 111e.1sured :it ;imortised cost 

Finance costs 

Nel ga in on sale of fin:inci:il assets mandatorily me.1sured at fa ir \'alue th rough profit or loss 

Net fair , ·alue ga ins on fi11;111cial assets m;md:uorily measured at fa ir value through profit or loss 

Fo reign eschange fluctuations (nel) 

Ch:111 :!C in opera tin:! as.sets anti liahililic.s 

(luc reasc)/Oecrease i11 trade rece i\'ables 

lncrc:isc iu tr.idc payables 

l11creasc/(Decre:isc) in other current fiuanda l liabilities 

l11crc:1sc iu othcr currcnt assets 

Increase in loans-current 

( l11crc.1se)/Decreasc in other 11011 current fi11a1 1cial assets 

Inc rease in ot her curreut financial assets 

Increase in prodsions 

l11creasc/(Dccrc:1sc) in othe r curreut liabil ities 

Increase in o ther 11011-current liabilities 

Cas h inflow from opcr:tlions 

lucome taxes p:1id (net of re runds) 

Net c,..sh inOow frum openling ae1i,·i1ies 

Ca.sh Oo\\'s from in,·csliug acti,iti cs 

Purchase of property, pla111 :ind equipment 

Purchase of curre nt in,·cstmcnts 

Proceeds from s.1 lc of current in\'cslment 

Proceeds from s.1lc of prope rty. plant and equipment 

Purchase consideration 10,~~trds busi ness combi nation 

lm·cstmcm in bank deposits 

Proceeds from 111a1 uri1y of bank dcposil s 

I merest received 

Nel ca.sh outflow from innstin 11 ac1i,·i1ics 

Ca~h 011ws from financing ac1i\·i1il'.s 
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including sccuri1ies premium) 

Pri11cipal payment of lease liabilities 

Interest paid 011 lc.,sc liabilities 

Ncl ca sh outflow from fin,.ncing a r1i,·i1ics 

Ne! iucrc,..sc in cash ,.1111 c:1.d1 cqui,·alcnt .s 

Cash :wd cash equivalcuts at the beginning of the year 

Acquired 0 11 business combina1io11 

Effect of c.xchauge differences on restatemem of forei gn currency cash and c.1sh equi,·alents 

c .. .sh and c,.sh e11ui,·alculs ill end of !he Year 

Non -C.tsh fin,.ndng ;md i"'·csliu g ;tclivity 
- Acquisi1io11 of right -of-use assets 

Reconciliation of c.t.sh .tnd c.t sh c1111h·;i lcnO ;1.s per cilsh now st:1tcmcnt 

Cash ,1nd c;i.sh cquh·alcnt.s as per ,.ho\'c com11ri.sc of !he followinJ! 

Balances with Bank 

Cash on hand 

Deposits wi th 111aturity of less tlian 3 months 

Bal,.nccs ,.s 11cr statcmcn1 of c;ish nows 

Notes: 

Year Ended 
l\larch 31, 21125 

(~ in L.1khs) 

242 .50 

216.9--t 

(2. 13) 

(20Ul7) 

(1.5 1) 

93.30 
(2S.G6 ) 

5.22 

( 1.757.1 3) 

1.U27A3 

231.7-1 

{159.79 ) 

( LI)) 

( 17 .66) 

('J-1 .0-1 ) 

S'J.23 

(7 .98 ) 

20. 1-1 

1.053.15 

( 15 1.93) 

901.22 

(96.67) 

(3.009.85) 

3.•-12-1 .63 

I 1.1 9 

('Xl3.3 1) 

(6.299.30) 

5. 139.30 

174 .28 

(1,559.73) 

-1 ,000.00 

(70 .2-1) 

{'JJ. 16) 

3JIJG.60 

3,178.09 

37,7') 

3.-10-1 .97 
17.37 

6,6JH.22 

As al 
M_. rch JI, 2025 

(tin Lakhs) 

2.760.74 

0.:5 1 

3.876 ,97 

6,6JH.22 

Year Ended 
i\farch 31,21124 

{fin Lakhs) 

36-U3 

210.05 

(1 827) 

(0.93 ) 

(3 .72 ) 

(3 .02) 

')'J .66 

( 16.35) 

(:5.68) 

(0.97) 

6-1 .36 

38.')6 

(27.7-1 ) 

(G0.65) 

26.•)8 

(0.69) 

15. 1-1 

5.21 

686.67 

('J:5 .-1 8) 

591.19 

P6.0-I) 

(2 . 18'J .89) 

1.760 .73 

3.58 

(500.00) 

500.00 

3.72 

(457.90) 

(:56.2 1) 

('J') .-111 

(155.62) 

(22.33) 

60. 12 

37.79 

A~ :.1.t 

i\1:trch JI , 202--t 

(f in Laklts) 

37 .2fi 

0.5 1 

37.79 

I. The abo,·c Co11so lida1cd S1atcmcn1 of Cash Flows has bci= u prepared under the Indirect Method as set out iu Lhe Indian Accounting Standa rd IJnd AS -7 on 
~Statement of C.,sh Flows~I . 

2. The :1bovc Consolid;1tcd S1a1eme11t of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction wilh the accompa11\i11g notes. 

3. Fil!ures iu br:1ckA ica1c cash outnow. 

This is 1he Consolid\ ed Statcmcut of Cash Flows referred lo iu our report of even date. 

For D l\.-1 And Comx;:} 

Firm Rceisiratio" :t \77N 

~ 
Partner 
Membership No 504305 

Place: Gunt)!r:lrn 
Da1e: Ma,· 12. 2025 

For and on behalf of the Bo;ud of Directors 

t4 
Director 
DI N : 00706]36 

Pl ace: Gumgram 
Date : Ma\' 12. 2015 

Manoi Sharma 
DircclOr 
DIN : 02745 526 

Place: Gumgram 
Date: May 12. 2025 



lca ll Support Sen1ices Privnte Limited 

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the )'Car ended Ma rch 31, 2025 

I) Eq uity slrnrc capi tal 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Increase in shares on account of new issue 

Sha res outstanding at the end of the )'Car 

II) Other equi ty 

Particulnrs 

Balance as at April 01, 2023 

Profit for the year 

Other com_e_rehensive income 

Total comprehensive income fo r the yenr 

Issue of equity shares 

Employee share-based payment expense 

Bala nce as al March 31, 2024 

Profit fo r the year 

Other com_e_rehensive income 

Tota l comprehcnsi\'C income fo r the year 

Issue of equity shares 

Appropriation from current year profit to statutory reserve 

Employee share-based payment expense 

Balance ns at Ma rch 31 , 2025 

Notes 
Secu rities premium 

2,697.13 

8(b) 

8(b) 

8(b) 

8(b) 

2,697.13 

8(b) 

S(b) 

8(b) 3,680.00 

8(b) 

S(b) 

6,377.13 

Retained earnings 

(1 ,690.78) 

233 . 79 

(6.19) 

227,60 

(1 ,463.18) 

1,238.12 

(3. 16) 

1,234.96 

(44 .63) 

(27_2_._115 ) 

Asnl 
Mnrch 31 , 2025 

Number of Shares 

182,365 

320,000 

502,365 

Ot her eq uity 

Foreign currency 
trans lnlion resen'C 

17.37 

17.37 

17.37 

Amount 
(f in Lnkhs) 

18 2.37 

320.00 

502.37 

Stnturory rcscn•e 

44 63 

44.63 

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred 10 in our report of even date. 

For D M And Company 

Finn Registration Number: 022527N 

Dbeeraj Mehta 
Partner 
Membership No. 504305 

Place: Gurugrnm 

Date: May 12, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board ofDirec1ors 

Dahiya 

Director 

DIN : 00706336 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: May 12, 2025 

~:ff 
Director 

DIN : 02745526 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: May 12, 2025 

As nt 
March 311 2024 

,\11101111 1 
Number of Shares 

(t in Lnkhs) 

182,365 182.37 

182,365 182,37 

(f in Lakhs) 

G roup se ttled shnrc Tota l 

bnscd pa,•mcru rcsen1e 

101.27 1,107.62 

233. 79 

(6. 19) 

227,60 

(18.27) (18.27) 

83.00 1,316.95 

1,238.1 2 

14.21 

1,252.33 

3,680.00 

216.94 2 16.94 

299.94 6,466.22 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 1: General Information 

!call Suppo1t Services Private Limited ("the Company" or "the Holding Company" or "!call") is a Company 
incorporated on 7th July 2008 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at Plot 
no. 84, Sector 44, Gurugram, Haryana. The company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PB Fintech Limited 
("Ultimate Holding Company"). 

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together refen-ed to as the 
' Group' ). The Group is engaged in call centre operations, customer management and insurance broker services. 

Note 2: Summary of Material Accounting Policy Information 

This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated: 

a. Basis of preparation 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules , 2015 (as amended from time to time) 
and presentation requirements of Division lI of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 , (Ind AS compliant 
Schedule lll). These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees and all values are rounded to 
the nearest lakh, except when otherwise indicated . 

b. Historical Cost Convention 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following 
items: 

- Ce1tain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value; 
- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and 
- Share based payments 

c. Current and non-current classification 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as cunent or non-current as per group's operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in the Schedule llI, (Division 11) to the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time. The 
group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of 
assets and liabilities. 

d. Amendment in Accounting standards adopted by the company 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2024 dated August 12, 2024, to introduce Ind AS 117 "Insurance Contracts", replacing the existing [nd AS I 04 
" Insurance Contracts" and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 dated 
September 09, 2024, to amend Ind AS 116. 

These amendments are effective for annual repo1ting periods beginning on or after April 0 1, 2024. The Company 
has applied these amendments for the first-time. 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(i) Introduction of Ind AS 117: 

[nsurance Contracts Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for 

insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 applies 

to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain 

guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. 

The amendment has no impact on the Company' s financial statements. 

(ii) Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to Ind AS 116: 

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in 

a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss 

that relates to the right of use asset it retains. 

The amendment is effective for annual repo1iing periods beginning on or after April O I, 2024 and must be 

applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of 

Ind AS 116. 

The amendment has no significant impact on the Company ' s financial statements. 

e. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 

(i) Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is 
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its investment with the entity and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity . Subsidiaries are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the 
date that control ceases. 

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the group. 

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together 
like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. lntercompany transactions, balances and 
unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also 
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impai rment of the transferred asset. Accounting 
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the group. 

f. Business Combinations 

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether 
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary 
comprises the 
• fair values of the assets transferred 
• liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business 
• equity interests issued by the group 
• fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration a1Tangement. 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with 
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non­
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non­
controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired entity ' s net identifiable assets . Acquisition-related costs 
are expensed as incurred . 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, amount 
of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest 
in the acquired entity over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, 
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually 
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. 

For the purpose of impainnent testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is , from the acquisition date, 
allocated to each of the Group ' s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, 
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units . 

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently 
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is 
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in 
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss 
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously 
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising 
from such remeasurement are recognised in the statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income, as 
appropriate. 

g. Property, plant and equipment 

All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization and 
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is 
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss. 
during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of prope1ty, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is 
classified as capital advances under the non-current assets. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets· less their residual values over the useful lives, using 
the straight line method. The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the 
management which in some cases are different as compared to those specified by Schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013 , in order to ·eflect the actual usage of the assets. 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

The residual values of the assets are assessed to be nil. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, 
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in 
the statement of profit and loss . 

The useful lives of assets have been considered as follows: 

Description • Useful life 
Computers 3 years 
Furniture & Fixtures* 7 years 
Office Equipment* 3 years 
Lease hold Improvements Period of Lease or 3 years 

whichever is earlier 

*For these class of assets, based on internal assessment the management believes that the usefu l lives as given 
above best represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence, useful lives of 
these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

h. Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at acqu1s1t10n cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a strnight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The 
amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. lf the expected 
useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed 
accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The group has software licenses under intangible assets which are amortized over a period of 3 years. 

i. Impairment of non-financial assets 

For all non-financial assets, the Group assesses whether there are indicators of impairment. If such an indicator 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if 
any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

The recoverable amount for an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the asset or CGU is 
considered impaired and the can-ying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows of the asset or CGU are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal , recent market transactions are taken into 
account. 

If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are 
corroborated by valuation multiples , quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair 
value indicators . 

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and 
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is 
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond 
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash -flow projections in the 
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for S[Jbsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In 
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or 
country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the 
asset's or CGU ' s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount since the last impairment 
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the canying amount of the asset does not exceed its 
recoverable amount, nor exceed the canying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

j. Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. 

Sale of services 
The Group earns revenue from services as described below: 

1) Insurance commission and rewards - includes commission and rewards earned for solicitation of 
insurance products/policies. 

2) Telemarketing services - includes revenue earned on call centre operations and customer management. 

Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax charged on such services. In terms of the contract, excess 
of revenue over the billed at the year end is carried in the balance sheet as unbi lied trade receivable as the amount 
is recoverable from the customer without any future performance obligation. Further Unbilled is classified as 
current and non-current on the basis of the operating life cycle of the company Cash received before the services 
are delivered is recognised as a contract liability, if any. 

Revenue from above services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. When 
there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such 
unce11ainty is resolved . 

No significant element of financing is deemed present as the services are rendered with a credit tenn of 30-45 
days, which is cons· stent with market practice. 



!call Support Services Private Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

k. Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services perfonned in the ordinary course of business. 
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional. The Group holds 
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them 
subsequently at amortised cost, less loss allowance. 

I. Foreign currency transactions 

Functional and p,·esentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of the group are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the group operates ( ' the functional currency' ) i.e. Indian rupee (INR), which is PB Fintech 
Limited ' s functional and presentation currency. 

Transactions and balances 

Initial recognition: On initial recogmtlon, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the 
date of the transactions. 

Subsequent recognition: As at the reporting date, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the 
closing rate and non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

Exchange gains and losses arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates 
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the year or in previous financial 
statements are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. in the year in which they arise. 

Translation of foreign operations: The financial statements of foreign operations are translated using the 
principles and procedures mentioned above, since these businesses are carried on as if it is an extension of the 
Company ' s operations. 

Group Companies: 

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary 
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the 
presentation currency as follows: 

• assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet 
• income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates 
• All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income 

When a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to the statement of profit 
and loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a 
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. 



Icall Support Services Private Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

m. Employee benefits 

i) Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance scheme, Gratuity, Compensated 
absences and share based payments. 

ii) Defined contribution plans 

The group contributions to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance scheme are considered as contribution 
to defined contribution plan and charged as an expense based on the amount of contributions required to be made 
as and when services are rendered by the employees. 

iii)Defined benefit plans 

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected 
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement, 
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset, is 
reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in 
the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected 
immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by 
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined liability or asset. 

iv) Short-term obligations 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 
rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the related services. 

These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to be settled within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

The cost of sho1t-tem1 compensated absences is accounted as under: 
(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that mcrease their 

entitlement of future compensated absences; 
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. 

v) Other long-term employee benefit obligations 

The liabilities for compensated absences are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 
the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value 
of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 
repo1ting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at 
the end of the reporting period that have tenns approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss .. 

The obligations in relation to compensated absences are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet as 
the group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the repo1ting 
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

vi) Share-based payments 

Share-based payments are considered as 'Equity-settled share-based payment transactions' under Ind AS 102. The 
Group measures the fair value of the services received and recognises an expense in the statement of profit and 
loss with a corresponding increase in equity by reference to the fair value at the grant date of the equity 
instruments granted . Fuither w.e.f. October 01 , 2024, PB Fintech Limited (" Ultimate Holding Company") 
initiated a recharge arrangement under which co1Tesponding credit is being recognised as liability. 

n. Leases 

Group Company as a lessee: 
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is 
available for use by the Group Company . Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. 

Lease liabilities: 
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis . Lease liabilities include 
the net present value of the future lease payments. 

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives 
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate and amounts expected to be paid under 
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably 
ce1tain to be exercised by the group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease tenn reflects 
the group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are 
recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. Lease 
payments to be made under reasonably ce1tain extension options are also included in the measurement of the 
liability . 

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments are allocated 
between principal and finance cost. 

The finance cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss. over the lease period so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

Right-of-use assets: 
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability and 
lease payments made before the commencement date. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease tenn on a straight-line basis. Right-of-use assets are measured at 
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease 
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, and lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. 

Short term leases and leases of low value assets: 
Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a 
straight-line basis as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Short-tenn leases are leases with a lease term 
of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise small items of office equipment including IT equipment. 

r 
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o. Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year excluding treasury shares. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the profit after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive 
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings 
per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of 
all dilutive potential equity shares, except where results are anti-dilutive. 

p. Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows , cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily 
conve1tible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

q. Trade Payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the 
financial year which are unpaid . The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the 
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

r. Income Taxes 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period ' s taxable income based on 
the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences and to unused tax losses. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
end of the reporting period . Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation . It establishes provisions where 
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that is probable that tax profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized . 

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by 
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or 
the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax ass.ets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax 
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

s. Provisions and contingencies 

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a 
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the repo1ting period. The discount rate used to 
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 
interest expense. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cuITent best estimates. 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be 
made. Contingent assets are not recognised in consolidated financial statements since this may result in the 
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually ce1tain, 
then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. A contingent asset is disclosed, 
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is 
vi1tually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the 
period in which the change occurs. 

t. Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. 

.. 
Financial assets 

Classification: 
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories 
• those to be measured subsequently at fair value ( either through other comprehensive income or through profit 
and loss), and 
• those measured at am01tized cost. 

The classification depends on the entity ' s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows. 

Initial recognition: 
At initial recognition, the group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the statement 
of profit and loss. 
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Subsequent measurement: 
After initial measurement, financial assets classified at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amo11ised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pai1 of the EIR. The EIR am011isation is 
included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are carried at fair value at each reporting date. 
Fair value changes are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the group recognizes 
interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and 
loss. On de-recognition of the financial asset other than equity instruments, cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit and loss. 

Any financial asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as financial assets at 
fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are fair valued at each repo11ing date with all the changes 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

Equity investments 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS I 09 are measured at fair va lue. The Group may make an irrevocable 
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such 
election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of 
profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within 
other equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

Equity investments in associates are measured at cost. The investments are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 'Impairment of 
Assets'. [fany such indication exists, policy for impairment of non-financial assets is followed. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 
amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk. The presumption under Ind AS 109 with reference to significant 
increases in credit risk since initial recognition (when financial assets are more than 30 days past due), has been 
rebutted. 

For trade receivables only, the group applies the simplified approach permitted wherein an amount equal to 
lifetime expected credit losses is measured and recognised as loss allowance. 
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De-recognition of financial assets 

A financial asset is derecognized only when 
• The group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
• retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation 
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients . 

Where the group has transferred an asset, the group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the group 
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not 
derecognised. 

Where the group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the group has not retained control of the 
financial asset. Where the group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the 
extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

Income recognition 

Interest income 

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and other comprehensive income is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as pat1 of other income. Interest income on financial assets at 
amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 
part of other income. 

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial 
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the 
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss 
allowance). 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
issue of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any 
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest. 

Subsequent measurement 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method . 
Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the ElR amo11isation process. 

Amo11ised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral pa11 of the ElR. The EIR amo11isation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and 
loss. 
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De-recognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability . The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of any entity after deducting all 
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue 
costs. 

u. Offsetting Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on 
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency. 

v. Segment Information 

Operating segments are reported Ill a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the board of 
directors. refer note 25. 

w. Exceptional items 

Exceptional items include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary activities, however are of 
such significance and nature that separate disclosure enables the user of the financial statements to understand the 
impact in a more meaningful manner. 

z. Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as per the 
requirement of Schedule 111 Division (II), unless otherwise stated. 
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Note 3: Critical estimates and _judgements 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, 
will seldom equal the actual results . Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the group's 
accounting policies. 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity , and of items 
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than 
those originally assessed. Detailed infonnation about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant 
notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Critical estimates and judgements 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 

► Estimated useful life of tangible assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, 
plant and equipment at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets . Uncertainties in these 
estimates relate to technical and economy obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and 
equipment. Reasonable changes in assumptions are not expected to have a significant impact on the 
amounts as at the balance sheet date. 

► Estimation of defined benefit obligation - refer note 9 
► Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward tax losses - refer note 21 (b) 
► Right-of-use assets and lease liability - refer note 4(b) 
► Share based payments - refer note 26 
► Impairment of trade receivable and financial assets- refer note 28 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors , 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the group and that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. 



lcall Su1111ort Sen-ices Private Lim ited 

Notes to the consolidated fi nancial statements for the year ended March 31 , 2025 

Note 4(a) : Pro11cr(y, plant and equi 11 ment 
~ in Lakhs 

Pa rticu lars Computers 
Office Fu rniture Leasehold 

Total 
Eq ui pment & Fixtu res I mprovemen ts 

Y ca r ended Ma rch 31 , 2024 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening gross canying amount I 1. 15 26.69 66.16 2 13.66 3 17.66 
Additions 35.82 0.22 36.04 
Disposals (7 .57) (0.22) (7.79) 

Closing gross carrying amount 39.40 26.69 66.16 213.66 345.91 

Acc umulated Depreciation 

Opening accumulated depreciation 3.61 5.75 0.98 22.25 32.59 

Depreciati on charge for the year 3.6 1 8.80 9.64 71.30 93.35 
Disposals (5 09 ) (0 06 ) (5. 15) 

Closing accumulated depreciation 2. 12 14.49 10.62 93.55 120.79 

Net carrying amount as at March 31 , 2024 37.27 12.20 55.54 120.11 225.12 

Yea r ended March 31 , 2025 

Gross ca n y ing amount 

Opening gross carrying amount 39.40 26 .69 66 .16 213.66 345.9 1 
Addition of subsidary (refer note 30) 13.64 25 .06 38.70 

Add itions 58.28 38.00 0.45 96 .73 
Disposals (12 .98) ( 12 98) 

Closing gross carrying amou nt 98.34 89.75 66.61 2 13.66 468.36 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Opening accumulated depreciation 2.12 14.49 10.62 93 .55 120.79 
Addition of subsidary (refer note 30) 0.42 3 09 3.5 1 
D epreciation charge for the year 23.79 2107 9.64 71.30 125.80 
Disposals (3.92 (3.92 

Closing accu mulated depreciation 22.41 38.65 20.26 164.85 246.18 

Net carrying amount as at "11arch 3 1, 2025 75.93 51.10 46.35 48.81 222. 18 
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Note 4(b) : Leases 

This note provides infomiation for the leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company has taken various office premises on leases. Rental 

contracts are typically made for fixed periods of I year to 5 years. but may have extension options as described in (iv) below. 

(i) Amounts recognised in balance sheet 

The balance sheet shows the following amount re lating to leases : 

(a) Right-of-use assets 

Particu lars 

Year ended March 3 1, 2024 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening gross carrying amount 

Additions 

Disposals 

Closing gross car rying amou nt 

Accumulated depreciation 

O pening accumulated depreciation 

Depreciation charge for the year 

Disposals 

C losin g accumu lated depreciation 

Net carrying amount as ::it March 31, 2024 

Year ended March 3 1, 2025 

Gross c:1rryi 11 g amount 

Opening gross carrying amount 

Additions 

Disposals 

Closing gross carrying amount 

Accumulated depreciation 

Opening accumulated depreciation 

Depreciation charge for the year 

Disposals 

Closing accu mulated depreciation 

Ne t carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 

(b) Lease liabilities 

1\·lo \'cment in lease liab ilit ies during the year 

Particulars 

Opening lease liabilities 

New leases recognised 

Tennination/withdrawals of lenses 

Interest expense on lease liabilit ies 

Payment of lease liabilities 

C losing lease liabilities 

Break up of current and non-current lease liabilities: 

Particulars 

Current 

Non-current 

Total 

(ii) Amounts recognised in sta tement of profit a nd loss 

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amount re lating to leases: 

Particulars 

(a) Depreciation charge on right of use assets frcfcr note 17) 

(b) Interest expense (included in finance cost) [refer note 16] 

(c) Expense re lating 10 short tcnn leases (included in rent under other expenses) [refer note 201 

Tota l (a+b) 

Right-of-use assets -
Office rcmiscs 

1,050.29 

1,050,29 

86.59 

11 6.70 

203,29 

847.00 

1,050.29 

1,050.29 

203 .29 

I 16 .70 

319.99 

730.30 

As at 
March 31 2025 

962.50 

93.16 

(16340) 

892.26 

Asal 
March 31, 2025 

86. 15 

806. 11 

892 .26 

Year ended 
March 31, 2025 

116.70 

93. 16 

67.54 

277.40 

(i ii ) The total casl outflow for leases for the year ended March 3 1, 2025 wast 163.40 Lakhs (March 3 1, 2024 - t 155.62 Lakhs) 

(tin L:tkhs) 

Total 

1,050.29 

l ,050,29 

86.59 

I 16.70 

203.29 

847.00 

1,050.29 

1,050.29 

203 .29 

I 16.70 

3 19.99 

730,30 

(tin Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

1,018.71 

99.41 

(155.62) 

962.50 

(tin Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

70.24 

892.26 

962.50 

(tin Lakhs) 

Year ended 
M:irch 31, 2024 

116.70 

99.41 

216.ll 
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(iv) Extension and tcrmin:1tion options:-

Extcnsion and tennination options arc included in a number of leases . These are used to maximize operational flexibility in tenns of managing the 
assets used in the group 's operations. The extension and tcnnination options held arc exercisable by both the Group and the respective lessor. 

(v) Critical judgments in determining the lease tcrm:-

ln dctcnnining the lease tcnn. management considers all focts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option. or 
not exercise a tennination option. Extension options (or periods aft er tenninati on options) arc only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably 
certain to be extended (or not tem1inatcd) . 

For leases, the follo \\'ing fac tors arc nonnally the most re levant: 
a) If there are signifi cant penalties to lcnninate (or not ex tend) , the Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not tenninate). 
b) If any leasehold improvements arc expected to have a significant remaining value. the Group is typica lly reasonably certain to extend (or not 
tenninate). 
c) Othe rw ise, the Group considers other fac tors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to replace the leased 
asset. 
fi.,tost extension options in leases have been included in lhe lease liability. because the Group could not replace the assets without significant cos t or 
business disrnption. 

The lease tcnn is reassessed ifan opt ion is ac tually exercised (or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The 
assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs. which affects this assessment , 
and that is within the contro l of the lessee. 
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Note 4(c): Intangible assets 

Particulars 

Yc:u ended March 31, 2024 

Gross c.arrying amount 

Opening gross carrying amount 

Additions 

Disposals 

Closing gross carr)·ing amount 

Accumu lated amortis:.1tion 

Opening accumulated amortisation 

Amortisation charge for the year 

lmpainncnt charge for the year 

Disposals 

Closing :1ccumulatcd amort isat ion 

Net car11•ing amount as at M:uch 31, 2024 

Ye:u- ended March 31, 2025 

Gross carr')'ing amount 

Opening gross carrying amount 

Additions 

Acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 30) 

Disposals 

Clos ing gross carrying amount 

Accumulated amortisation 

Opening accumu lated amortisation 

Amortisation charge for the year 

lmpainnent charge for the year 

Disposals 

Closing accumulated amortisation 

Net carrying amount :1s a t March 31, 2025 

Details of c:u-,-ying amount of goodwill allocated to c:,sh ~cncnltin~ units (CG Us) : 

Particulars 

Cash generating units (CGUs) 

Policybazaar· Middle East Insurance Brokers LLC 
(Erstwhile, Genesis Insurance Brokers LLC) (refer note 30) 

Total 

Impairment testing of goodwill 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

(tin Lakhs) 

138.02 

138.02 

(tin Lakhs) 
Goodwill acquired 

through business 
combin:1tion 

138 02 

138.02 

138.02 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

(tin Lakhs) 

-

For the purpose of impairment testing. goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the cash generating unit (CGU), which 
benefits from the synergies of the acquisition . Goocl\',1ill is tested for impainnent at least annually. Impairment is recognised, when the 
carrying amount of cash generating units (CGU) including goodwill , exceeds the es timated recoverable amount ofCGU. 

The recoverable amount of CGUs is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value. The fair value of a CGU is determined 
based on value-in-use detennined based on discounted future cash flows. f'or calcu lation of discounted future cash flows, the key 
assumptions used by the Group arc discount rate , long tenn growth rate, capital outflow and working capital requirements, etc. The 
assumptions are taken on the basis of past trends and managcmenl estimates and judgement. The discount rate is based on the \Veightcd 
Average Cost of Capital (WACC). 

As at March 3 1, 2025 , the estimated recoverable amount ofCGU "Policybazaar Middle East Insurance Brokers LLC (Erstwhile, Genesis 
Insurance Brokers LLC)" exceeded its carrying amount and accordingly, no impairment was recognised . An analysis of the sensitivity of 
the computation to change in key assumptions based on reasonable probability did not identify any possible scenario in ,vhich the 
recoverable amount of the CGU "Policybazaar Middle East Insurance Brokers LLC (Erstwhile, Genesis Insurance Brokers LLC)" wou ld 
decrease below its carrying amount. 

An ana lysis of the sensitivity of the computation to change in key assumption s based on reasonable probability did not identify any 
possible scenario in which the recoverable amount of the CGU wou ld decrease below its carrying amount. 
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Notl'S 101he cuusolitfatcd lin;mcbl stalcmenls for !he ~·c:tr c,ukd l\1:trch JI, 21125 

Note 5 : lnromt· Ill'.\ assets (net) 

Non current ta '.\ :tssests (ncl) 

Ad\'a11cc inco me tas !net of provision " 186A I L1khs (March 3 1, 202-1 ? 110 5-1 L:1khsJ I 

Tot:tl 

Nole 6 : Fin:mci:11 :asset ~ 

Nole 6(a): Current liwestments 

Current lnnstmen1s 

lau·est ment in mulu;1l funds - Unquoted 

(A l f:iir value through profit or loss) 

As:11 

M:irch JI. 2025 

(tin L1khs) 

19-1 .06 

19-Ul6 

Asal 

M:trchJl.21125 

(t in L:1khs) 

11S13C Ultra Shmt Dura1 ion Fund - Direct- Gro11th I March 31. :W25 -1. 1..1 6 01 umts (~larch ; 1, 102..i 36Jl 7'J I..! 111111 s )1 

Tot;1I currcnl innst mcnts 

55.83 

55,85 

Total 

A:,:;.:rc;.:alc :1111011111 of quoted inn.'stmcnts 

A:,::,:rc;.:atc amouut of markel n1luc of quoted i111·cstmc11ts 

A1,:~rc:,::i1e otmount of unquoted innst ments 

A;.:i.: rc:,::1le ;t111ount of impainuent in the , ·aluc of i111cstmc111s 

Note 6(h): Tr:1de recciv:i.hlcs 

Tr.idc r1.--ceil·abk.-s from contract 11i th cuslomcrs 

- Dilled 

- Unbilled # 

Tr.1dc recci\"ab!cs from rclalcd pa rties [refer note 2·11 

- Billed 

- Unbilled II 

Tot.ii 

Current pon ion 

Non- Current ponion 

Bn-:ik-1111 of securit~· dclails 

Trndc rccci, ·abl cs considered ~ood - secured 

Trade rccci1·ables considered good - unsecured 

Trade rccci, ·ab!c:s which h;n-c si~nifican! i11cre,1sc in credl! risk 
Trade rccei1·ablcs - c redil i1111,aired 

Tutal 

Less: Loss all011~mcc 

Tot:11 

A!!cill:! or1n1dc recch·,1hlcs ;1s .11 l\hrch 31, 2025: 

P:irtic:ul:irs 

(i) Undi sputed Trade rccci,·ablcs- considered i;ood 

(ii) Undispuled Trade Receh·abks- which ha1·c signiric:mt increase in crcdi1 risk 

(iii) Undismlled Trade Rccci1·ablcs- credit imu;1ircd 

(i \' ) Dispuled Trade Rccci\"ablcs cousidercd good 

(\') Disputed Trade Rocci\'ablcs - which ha,·c signific.1nt increase in crcdi1 ri sk 

(,·iJ Disouted Trade Recei1·ablcs - credit impaired 

P.1rticul:1rs 

(i) Undisputed Trade rccci\'ables- considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Rccei,·abl~ - which ha,·c significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) U11disu111cd Trade Receil'ahlcs- credit inu,.1ired 

(ii') Dispulcd Tr:ide Receivables considered good 

(\' ) Disputed Trade Rccci\'ablcs- which hal'e si~nificant incrc..1sc in c red it ri sk 

(1·i) Disoutcd Trade Rccci,·ablcs - credit inmaired 

Tot.11 

Unhilkd 

3.o:n .tJo 

3,031.90 

Unhillctl 

Xl'.!'J.21 

XX9.2I 

55.XS 

A s:11 

March 31, 2U25 

(:tin L1khs) 

1% .-1 ') 

1,868.5 1 

71 1 <J7 

1.163 .3') 

J.950,36 

3.950.36 

As;tt 

1\l :1rch JI. 2025 

(tin L.ikhs) 

3.'J5U.36 

J,950.36 

J.'J5U.J6 

Out!iit;uuJinJ: for followini.: periods from due dale 

Not due Less th:in 6 munlhs- I 
{,months 

X2.73 82-1 .72 I 1.01 

82.73 H2-l .72 11.01 

1-2 2-3 !\turcthau 
J ~-c:irs 

Oulst:mdin~ for followin;! periods frum due d.it<' 

Nol due U.'ss 1h:1n 6 months- 1 1-2 2-J l\1ore lhan 
6 month s J Ye.In: 

# The receivable is ·unbilled ' because lhc Group has not yet issued an i1n oice: ho11e\'er. the balance has bee n 111cludcd under trade rcce11·abl es because it is an unconditional r1 gl1t 10 co11s1dcrauon. 

As;lt 

l\1:1rch JI. 2112-1 

(t in Lakhs) 

228.5-1 

2285~ 

As :il 

March JI . 2112-1 

(t in Lakhs} 

-151 , \'J 

-151.19 

.151.1') 

-151.19 

As at 

l\t:1rch JI. 2024 

('tin L1ld1s} 

!<89 .2 1 

HR<J.21 

88').2 1 

,\!ii al 

1\1:irch 31. 202.1 

(t i11 Lakhs) 

H89.21 

889.21 

(:tin L..1khs) 

Tot:il 

3.950.36 

J,')50.36 

tt in L:1khs) 

Tot :11 

889.21 

H89.21 



lc:1 II Support Sen ires l'rh·atc Limited 

Notes cu the cunsuliclatcd lin ;uu: ial st:Hcmcnt s fo1· thc year· ended l\1ar-ch 31 , 2025 

Nu te 6(c ) : C ash :md c:tsh c11uirnlcnls 

Balances 11i th bank 

-i n current accou nl s 

Cash on h.1 11d 

Deposits 111 tl1 m:uurny of less than 3 mo111hs 

Tolal 

Note 6(d): Loans 

Current 

U11sccu1·cd, considen·d :.:oml 

Loan to employees 

Total 

Note G{c ) : Other financial asscls 

No n-<:un·cnt 

Securi ty deposits 

Deposi t \\i lh the nuni stry of economy• 

Tota l 

Current 

Sccmily dcposil s 

13a lanccs in fi xed depos i1 accounts wi th o rigi nal maturi ty wi th mor e 1han !1 mo1111Ls 

A mount rcco\·crabk from fcl lo11 Subsid i;ir:,· co mpan ies for expe nses !refer 1101c 2-1 I 
A JU0\111\ TCCO\"erablc from employc-cs 

Deposits wi1l1 111s11 1:1nce con1p:1111cs 

Tlll:tl 

A s .1t 

!\larch JI, 2U25 

(tin Lakhs) 

2.7GU.7-I 

O 5 1 

3.876 .'J? 

6,6311.22 

As:11 

March 31, 2025 

(l in Lakhs) 

I.I I 

1.11 

As.i t 

l\brch 31, 21125 

(l in Lakhs) 

:,0_02 

6'JX .UIJ 

7211.11 

-1 .-1 -1 

Ll !l7.5•J 

1.76 

93 .0X 

1.21-16.87 

As at 

l\Ltrch 31 , 2112-1 

(t in Lakhs) 

37.79 

Asa t 

1\l:m ; h J l.202-1 

(" in Lakhs) 

As:11 

i\Llrch 3 1, 20 2-1 

{t in Lakhs) 

2X :'i i 

373 

J.7J 

• Statutor:,· deposu of~ 69X.U'.l L1khs (AED 30 L1khs) by Polig ·b:1 1 .. 1:u t-.·11ddlc E:ist lnsur:wce IJ rokc rs LLC {Erst11 hilc . Genesis lnsur:mcc Droke rs LLC) n 11dircct subsid1ar:, Ml 1h:i1 ca nnot be \1 it hdrall"n 11·11ho111 1l1e pri or 

appro\";11 of the M ini str:,· of Economy, UAE 

Noh.' 7 : Othcr CU1T CII I .ISSCIS 

Ad\"a llCC to \ 'Cndors 

I3al ::i ncc wi1h go\"cmmc111 au1l1ori t ics 

Prepaid expe nse 

Tot.ti 

As al 

l\1.trd1 JI . 2025 

(t in Lakh s) 

-1 5.37 

166 8X 

133 .20 

As,1t 

March 31, "/.02-1 

(t iu L.i l.: hs) 

11-1 5 

I 1-1 .77 

11.3') 

137.6 1 



lca ll Suppo1·1 Scn •iccs Privat e Lim ited 

Noles to lhe co nsolidated fin ancial sl:1 tcmcnl s for the year end ed i\farch 31 , 2025 

Nole 8(:1) : Equity 

Eq uity share c:1pit:1! 

Authorised equity s hare capi ta l 

As :1 l M:1rch 31, 2023 

Add : increase during the year 

As :11 !\1:1rc h 3 1, 202-1 

Add. incre.ise d uring the year 

As :,t i\forch 31, 2025 

(i) ,'1m ·cmeul.\· in equity 1·hare capital 

Issued. subscribed and paid-up capital 

As at March 31, 2023 

Add : Shares iss ued during the ye:tr 

As :it !\1:1 rch 31, 2024 

Add : Shares issued during the yea r 

As al Marc h 31 , 2025 

Rights, preferences and rest rictions :1ttachcd to sh:u-cs 

Numb er of A mo unt 

s h:ircs (f in Lakhs 
300,000 300.00 

700,000 700.00 

1,000,000 1,000.00 

1.000,000 1.000.00 

Number or Amou nl 
shares (? in L:1khs) 

182,365 I 82.37 

I 82,365 1S2.3i 

320,000 320.00 

502,365 502.37 

Equity Shares: The company has on ly one class of cq u11 y shares havmg a p.i r va lue of Rs I 00 per share Each shareho lder is eligible fo r one vo te per sha re held Any d ividend 
proposed by the Board of Di rectors is subject to the approva l of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual Genera l Mee ting, except in case of interim di vidend In the event of 
liqu idation , the equ ity shareholders arc el,gible to rcee1ve the remai n mg asse ts o f the Company afte r distribution of a ll prefe rent ia l amounts. in proport ion to their sharehold mg 

(ii) .\'lwres of the cm 11pt111y held by lwldiu~ I ultimute !toldiu~ cvmpuny 

PB Fintcch Li mi ted (the Ult imate Holding Company) 

(iii) /)etuifr of.,·hureltolder:f lw ldi11;: more than 5% .rhure.,· in the co111p1111_1' 

PB Fintech Limited (the Ultimate Holding Cornpany) 

(iv ) Details of sh:1nhold ing of pro moters : 

Disc losure of share holding of promoters as at l\11arch 3 1, 2025 1s as fo llov,,s 

N:unc of the p romoter 

PB Fintech Limited (the Ult imate Holding Company) 

Tolal 

Disclosure of s hareholding of promoters as a1 i'v1arch 3 l . 2024 1s as fo llows 

N:1111e of the p romoter 

PB Fintcch Limited (the Ult imate Holding Company) 

Tot:11 

March 3 1, 2025 

N111111J cror Amount 
shares ('t in L:1khs) 

502,365 502.37 

502.365 502.37 

March 31 , 2025 

Number of 
sh:, rcs 

502,365 

502.365 

% holding 

100% 

i\'1 arch 31. 202-t 

Number o r A mount 
shares (t in l..akhs) 

I 82,365 I 82.37 

I S2.365 182.37 

Ma rch 31. 2024 

Number of 
sha res 

I 82,365 

182.365 

0/4, hold ing 

100¾ 

March 31 , 2025 M:u-ch 31 , 2024 

Num ber of 
% hold ing 

Number of % cha nge 
slrnrcs shares 

% hold ing 
d uring the yc:11· 

502,365 100.00% 182,365 100.00% 0 .00% 

502,365 100.00% 182,365 100.00% 0.00% 

March 31 , 2024 M:irch 31 , 2023 

Nu mber of 
% hold in g 

Number or % c h:1ngc 
slrn res shares 

% ho lding 
d uring 1he year 

182,365 I00.00% I 82,3 65 JOO 00% 0 .00% 

182,365 100.00% 182.365 100.00% 0.00% 



lca ll Supporl Sen·iccs Private Lim ited 

Noles lo lhe conso lida ted fi nanc ial statements for the ye:u· cndcd 1'·1arch 3 I, 2025 

Note S(b): O ther equity 

P:1rt icuh1rs 

Securit ies premiwn 

Retained earnings 

Group sett led share based payment reserve 

Foreign cuITcncy translation reserve 

Statutory reserve 

Tota l 

i) Securities premi um 

Part icubrs 

Openi ng balance 

Addit ions during the year 

C losing ba la nce 

ii ) Retained ea rnin gs 

P:irt iculars 

Opening balance 

Profit for the year 

Less: appropriat ion from current year pro li t to statutot)' reserve 

Items of other comprchens1ve mcomc recogni sed direc tly in 
retained earn ings 

- Rcmcasurcmcnts of post-employment benefit obligallon. 
net of tax 

C losing b.:1lance 

iii) Group settled sh a re based payment rcscn ·c 

Pa rticulars 

Opening balance 
Additions for employee share-based expense mcurred 

Closing ba la nce 

iv) Foreign c urrency tr:111sl:t tion resen 1e 

Particulars 

Opening balance 

Add: currency transla tion adjustments rclatmg to subsidiary 

Closing ba la nce 

ix) Statutory reserve 

P:ir ti cu l:1rs 

Opening balance 

Add: appropriation fro m current year profit 

C losing b:t l:rnce 

Nature and purpose of other resen1cs: 

a) Securi ties (Jrcmium reserve 

(t in L:1khs) 
As :ll As a t 

March 31. 2025 M:u-cl1 3 1. 2024 
6,377 .13 2,697 .13 

(272 85 ) ( 1.463 18) 

299.94 83 00 

17.37 

44.63 

6,466.22 1,3 16.95 

(t in Lakhs) 
As :t t As:1t 

Ma,-ch 3 1. 2025 J\larch 3 1. 202 -1 
2.697.13 2.697 .13 

3,680.00 

6,377.13 2,697. 13 

(tin Lakhs) 

As at As at 
March Jt,2025 March 31, 2024 

(1 ,463 .18) ( 1,690.78) 

1,238.12 233 79 

(44.63) 

(3 .16) (6.19) 

(272.85) (1,463.18) 

(i in Lakhs) 

As a t As at 
March 31. 2025 l\farch 31. 202-1 

83.00 101.27 

2 16.94 ( 1827 ) 

299.94 83.00 

(tin Lakhs) 

As at As :ll 
March 31. 2025 March 31. 202-1 

17.37 

17.37 

(~ in Lakhs) 

As at As :i t 
March 3 1. 2025 Ma rch 3 1. 2024 

44 .63 

44.63 

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on iss ue of shares. The reserve 1s uti lised in accordance with the 
provis ions of the Companies Act, 20 13 

b) Rct:1ined ea rn ings 

Thi s represents surplus/(dcficit) of profit and loss account and cumulative gains and losses arisi ng on the remeasurement of 
defined benefit s plans in accordance with Ind AS 19 that have been recognised in other comprehensive income 

c) Group settled sha r e b:1scd p_:1ymcnt reserve 

Group settled share based payment reserve is used to recognise the fa ir value of options granted to the employees of the Company 
by the ult imate Holding Company under ESO P scheme. 

d) Foreign c urrency tnmsb tion rese rve 
Exchange differences ari sing on translati on of the fore ib'll operations arc recognised in other comprehensive income as described 
in accounting policy and accumulated in a separate reserve , ...,ithin equity . The cumulative amount is reclass ified to profit or loss 
when the net investment is disposed off 

e) Statutory reserve 

In accordance wi th the UAE Federa l Law No (32) of 202 1, I 0% of the profit for the year 1s requi red to be transfeITcd to statutory 
reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve totals 50% of the issued share 
capital.The reserve is not avai lable for distribution except in the circumstances stipulated by the La\\'. Pursuant to th is law. every 
limited liability company 1s required to set as ide 10% of its annual net profits to statutory reserve 



lc:1II S111111or1 Scn·iccs Priv:1te Limited 

Noh..-s to the consolidated financi:tl sl:1teme11ls fo1· lhe ~-c:11· ended M:m:h JI , 2025 

Note 9 : ra-o,·isiuns 

Gr;:Umh 
Compensated .ibscnccs 
Tutal 

(i) Com11rns:ited ahsenccs 

67.37 
67.37 

As al i\1a r d1 JI , 2025 

Non-c urrent 
55.79 

55.79 

Total 
55 79 
67.37 

123.16 

Current 
3.2 1 

19.00 
22.2 1 

As at i\1arch 31 . 202-1 
N1111-c11rrc 11t 

IH➔ 

20.92 
JS.16 

(t in L:1khs) 

Tot:11 
17.-15 
39.92 
57.37 

ll1c lca\·c obligations CO\ Cr the Company·s hab1lit~ for earned k a\cS ll1c Company·s hab1hty 1s actuarially dctcnnincd (using the Projected Umt Credit method ) at the end or each year. Ac 1u:irial 
losses/ gains arc rccogruscd III the Statcmcnl or Profit and Loss m the :-car in \\hich th~ anSt.' 

ll1c amount or the pro, 1s1011 or~ 67 )7 Ltkhs (f,.farch 31. 202-1 - ~ 19 00 Lakhs) 1s prescnlcd .is currcnl. smcc the Company docs not ha\'C an uncond111onal nght to dcrcr sculcmcnt for m1:- or these 
obligations. Ho" e,·cr. b:ucd on past expcncncc. the Company docs not c~p,.--ct all cmplo:-ccs to t:.1kc the foll amount or accrued lca,·c or require payment \\lt lun tlu: 11cx1 12 months ll1c fo llo\, ing 
amounts rcflcc1 lca, c that is 1101 cx1x.-ctcd lo he taken or paid within the ncxl 12 months 

Lca,·c oblig:itions not CX IX'Cli .. 'd to llc seulcd \\1th1n tl,e next 12 months 

(ii) Defined con trihuti on plans 

a) Pro\" ident fund 

A~ :1t 
March 31, 1025 

t in L:tkh~ 

33.60 

Asat 
March 31. 202-1 

t in L:tkhs 

20.92 

The Company has a defined co11tnbu110n plan in rcs1>ect or prondcnl fund Contnbut1011s arc made to pro,·1dcnt fund for employees at the rate or 12% or b:.1s1c salar: as per regulations ll1c 
contributions arc made lo rcgislcrcd prondcnt fund admimslercd by the Gm·cnunent 11,c obligation or the Company is limited to the amount contributed and II has no rur1hcr contractua l nor m1y 
constructi,·c obligation ll1c expense rccogmscd dunng the :-car ended March ) I 2025 lowards defined contribution plan is Rs. IJ6.l4 lakhs (March J I. 202-1 • ~ 95 95 Lakhs} (rcfr:r note 151 

b) Employee State Insurance 
The Company has a defined contnbution plan III rcs1x-ct of cmplo:- cc stale msurancc ll1c expense rccogJUscd during the ~car ended March J I. 2025 IO\\ a1tls d..:fmcd con1nbut1011 plan 1s ~ 1.6-1 Lakhs 
(f,.farch 3 1. 202-1- { 11 18 Lakhs) (rcr.: r note 151 

(iii) Post c111ploymcnt hcncfil 111:tn ohlig:1tions• Gr:1tui1~· 

ll1e Company provides for gratuny for cmplo~·ccs as per the Pa~incnt orGrat111ty Act, 1972 Employees \\'ho arc in continuous service for a pcnod or 5 ~ca, s arc cllg1ble for gr.i tmly. The amount of 
gratuity payable on retircmcnt/tcmunat1on 1s the employees last drami basic salary per monlh computed proportionate ly ror 15 days s:ilar:· multipl ied for the number or years of sen-ice 

a) llic amounts n.-cogniz.cd m the balance sheet and the mon :mcnts in the net defined benefit obl igation o,·cr 1hc year arc as follo" s: 

A1u-il I, 1023 

Current scnicc cost 
lnlcrcsl cxpcnsd(incomc) 
E:qx..-ctcd return on plan assets 

Tol:tl ;1mount recognised in profit or loss 

Uc111c:as11rc:111c:11r:,, 
Return m1 plan assets, excluding amounts mcludcd m intcn..-st cxpcnsc/(income) 
(G:ii n)/loss from change in demographic assumplions 
(Gai n)/loss from change in linancial assumplions 
Experience (gains)/losscs 

Total ;1mount recognised in other compn.·hcnsi,·c income 

Employer contributions 
Benefit pa\"mcnlS 

March 31. ::m:u 

April I , 102--1 

Acquisition of subsidrnncs 

Rc,·i!icd A11ril I, 202-1 

Current sen-ice cost 

lnlcrcsl cxpcnsd(income} 

Expected return on plan assets 

Tot:tl amount 1"ccov,11iscd in profit or loss 

Rc:111.:nnir,•mc:llfs 

Return on plan assets. excludmg amounts mdudcd in mlcrest cxpcnsc/(incomc) 
(G:lin)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 
(Ga in)/loss from change in fmanci:.11 assumptions 
Experience (gains)11osscs 

Tot;1I :imounl n:CO:!lliscd in ocher comprchcnsil"c income 

Employer contributions 

Benefit payments 

March 31, 2025 

Prcscnl ,·:1l uc 
or ohli:!alion 

11.711 

5.19 

0 "" 

6.07 

0.06 
6.13 

6.19 

(6.59) 

17.--15 

17.--15 

3.41 

20.R6 

-15 .00 

1.26 

-16.26 

0.00 
0.69 
2.-17 

3.16 

(4.49) 

65.79 

F:tir'"alue or11l:1n 
assds 

( 10 00) 

(10.00) 

tin L:il,;hs 

Net :1111011111 

11.7M 

5. 19 
0.88 

6.07 

0.06 
6.13 

6.1 9 

(6.59) 

17.-15 

17.--15 

3.--11 

20.t!6 

-15.00 

1..26 

0,00 
0.69 
2.47 

3.16 

(10.00) 

(4.49) 

55.79 



lcall Suppurl Scn·ices Prirnle Limited 

Noles to the consolidated fin:111dal slatcmcnls fur the year ended i\l:trch 31, 2025 

b) TI1c net hab1l11~ di sclos...:d abo, c rcl;Hcs to funded plans arc as follo,, s 

Present rn luc of funded obligations 

Fair value of plan nssets 

Deficit of fondctl plan 

Prcsc111 , ·aluc of 1111fu11dcd obligations 

Deficit of unfunded plan 

Deficit of :::r;llnily plan 

c) ll1c s1g11 ifi c:mt :ic1u nrial nssump11011s were as fo llows · 

Discounl Rate (p,:r annum) 

Sal::iry growlh r:ilc 

A11rilion Rate 

( ,\) 

(B l 

(Cl ~ (A)+(O l 

As :1t 
i\larch 31. 2025 

ft in Lal.:hs) 
65.79 

(10.00) 

55.79 

55.79 

Emplo~·ces Gratuity Fund 

i\t:.rch JI. 2025 l\brch 31 . 202-i 

6.45% 

10.00"/o 

50.00% 

3-L07 

7.25% 

10.00%, 

50 00% 

32 00% 

As at 
/\larch JL 202-1 

(~ in Li1khs l 

17_-15 

17A5 

l7A5 

Compcns:1lctl :ih~c nc:cs 

i\larch JI. 2025 March 3 1. 2024 

7 25% 

1000% 

50 00% 

34.07 

725% 

10.00% 

50.00% 

32 00% Expccled :n cragc remaining \\ Orl-ing li, es of cmplo~ccs (~cars) 

Mortaht~· Rate IALM (201 2-1 ➔) Ultimat(.; IAUv1 (20 12-14 ) Uhimatc IAUv1 (201 2-14 ) Uhimntc IAU,·1 (201 2- 1•1) Ultimate 

Assumpt ions regarding fulu n: 111or1al1ty for pens ion arc sci based on act11anal advice in accordance with publ ished statistics .ind experience ·111c d1scoun1 rate assumed ,s dcternuncd by re ference to 

market yield at the balance shccL date on gm·emment bonds TI1e cst1111ntcs of future salary increase. co nsidered in actuari al ,·a luati on. takes :iccount of inn at ion. seniori ty. promotion and other rclc, aut 

factors such as demand and supply 111 the employment market 

d) Scns1l1\·11~ ;;inalys is . 

T11c si.:nsitu·ity of the defined benefit obhgatio n to changes m the " cightcd pr111cip:il assumptions is· 

lmpacl on tldinctl benefit uhli gation 
Impact on defined hcncfit obli ga tion 

C hange i11 :1ssump1iun l11c rc:isc in :iis umption Decrease in :1ss11mp1ion 

Discount rate 

SJlary gro,11h ratc 

March 31, 2U:!5 l\1:irch JI. :!UH 

I 00% 

1 00% 

I 00% 

I 00% 

M:irch 31. 2025 

(1.30%) 

1.58¾ 

March 31. 202~ 

( \ ,9 ,1% ) 

1.79% 

MarchJl.2025 i\1archJl.2U2-I 

1 37% 

( I ~W;,) ( 1 92%) 

The abo, ·c scnsi th ·ity anal~ ses arc based on a change m an nssumpt ion \,hilc holding all other assumpl1011s constant In practice, this is unlil-c ly Lo occur, .:rnd changes in some of the assumptions may 
be correlated When calculating the scnsiti,·ity of the defined benefit obligati on to signifiennt ac luJrial ;;issumpl ions 1hc s;;imc method (present \'alue of the defined benefit obliga1io11 calculated wi1h the 
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting pe riod) has been applied as when calculating the defined bcncfil liability recognised in the bnl::incc sheet Ass11mplio11s other 1han discount rJlc 

and sal:iry gro" th rate arc not mnlcrial for lhc Cmnpan~ 

e) Defi ned benefit liabil ity and employer contri butions 

ll1e weighted a,·c rage duration of the defined l>cne rL\ oblig.i11011 1s ➔ .09 years (March 3 I, 2024 - 27 years ). 

111c expected maturily ;:malys is of und1 scou11 tcd post employment bcncfil plan (gratuity) is as follows • 

l\tarch JI. 2025 

Defined benefit oblig.it ion (grn t11 i1y) 

Tol:11 

March 31, 2024 

Defined benefit obligation (gratuity) 

Total 

Le s.~ th:1n 
:t)·car 

(t in Lakhs) 

11 J I 

11.31 

J.2 1 

3.21 

Hctwccn 

I - 2 ~·cars 

(tin Lakhsl 

9.70 

9.70 

0.23 

0.23 

llcl"ccn 
2 - 5 , ·c:irs 

ft in Lakhs) 

lti.11 

18.11 

0.56 

More than 
5 ~·c:irs 

HinLal.:hs) 

6.113 

IJ.➔ 5 

Tot:11 

(~ in L:11.: hsl 

➔ 5 . 1 5 

17.➔ 5 



lcall Support Sc n ·ices rri,·,1tc Limitctl 

Notes to the consolitlalcd financial st:1 temc 111 s for lhc ~c.11· cndl·d M,u-ch JI, 21125 

Nolc 10 : Financi;1I liahilitics 

Note ltl(:t): Tr:idc pa~.thles 

Current 

Trnde p.iy:iblc:s 1111cro and sruall c,ucqmscs 

Trade pa~·ablcs others 

Tr;1dc pay:1blcs 10 related p:u11cs lrdcr 1101c 24 I 

Tol:tl 

A!.:cill!.:Oflrntle p:tvahlcs as :u l\l :1rch J I, 2025: 

r .1 rticul,1rs 

Undisp111cd lr.idc pay.iblcs 

Micro and small cmerpriscs 

Oll1ers 

Dis ,utcd 11:idc D,.1.yablcs 

t-.·1kro and sm:i ll en1em1iscs 

Others 

Tot.11 

r articulilrs 

Undispu1cd trade payables 

Micro and small cnterpri!.Cs 

01 hc rs 

Disputed 1r.1dc pavablcs 

Micro and s111:111 cn1cmriscs 

Others 

To1.1I 

Nole IO(h) : 01hcr financi al liahilili cs 

Current 

Employcc rcl a1ed payables 

Ca pital cred itors 

O thers 

Tot:al 

Nole 11 : 01hcr 11011-currl'llt li ahililics 

P.1y:1blc to related p:uties (rc rcr 1101e 24) 

Total 

Nole 12 : Other curn: nl li;1hili1ics 

S l:tlU\Or)" dues pay:i.blc 

Others 

Tot.ti 

Unbilled Noc due 

4.8 14 .98 t-\ 10.51 

4,HU.'JH !WJ.05 

Un billed Not due 

:us 
i&.13 43.'J I 

18. IJ 

As :tt 

March JI , 2025 

(:f: in L:1khs) 

IO IX 

1.1)73 -W 

-L6 13.6U 
S,6'J7.1X 

A s:11 

1\hrd1Jl.2U24 

(~ in L:tkhs) 

j('i l 

213 1 

67.55 

(l in L.tkhs) 

Oub1omdin i::. for followin;! llcriods frum duc d:1te or p;i~ mcnl Tot .11 

Less 1h:1n I rc:u- 1-2 ~-e:.ar 2-J ~car Mtu-c lh;tn 

U.64 

60 .3') 0. 11 0 _')') 0 .02 

61.0J U. 11 U.99 0.112 

Outst:tndin:,: for followin;! 11criods from due date of p.i~ mcut 

J,e__~s lh;m I ~-c;ir 1-2 ~·c:t r 2-J yc;u- More than 

0.()6 

U.'JO 0.98 U.02 

U.CJ6 0.9X 0.02 

As :.it 

March JI , 2025 

(:f: in Lakhs) 

-ISJ.114 

As .i t 

1\1.trch 31. 21125 

(tin Lal,hs) 

:W.14 

20.U 

March JI. 202~ 

(t in Lakh..-: ) 

136.04 

U. 12 

IJ6. 16 

IU. 1:,1 

.5.6~7.UO 

5,697. IH 

(~ in L1khs) 

3.6 1 

6155 

Asat 

March J I. 21124 

(t in L:tkhs) 

2!1 j O 

221.JO 

As:tl 

i\l;trchJl . 21124 

(l in L:1khs) 

As:11 

I\L11-d1 JI , 21124 

(t in Ltkhs) 

33.46 

7.20 

40.66 



!call Support Scnices Pri\'atc Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial s tatements for the year ended March 3 I, 2025 

Note 13 : Revenue from operations 

Sale of scr\'ices (net of applicalJlc ta xes): 

Tclc111arkcti11g services (refer note 24) 

Insurance commission and rewards 

Tota l 

Note 14 : Other income 

Interest l11come 

- On bank deposits- measured at amortised cost 

- On unwinding of di scount on sccrnity deposi t - measured at amo11iscd cost 

Net fai r value gains on fin ancial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss 

Net gain on sale of fin ancial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss 

Foreign cun-cncy exchange Income 

Pro fil on sale of property, plan \ and cquipmenl 

Provision no longer required written back 

Total 

Note 15: Employee benefits expense 

Salaries , wages and bonus 

ConlrilJutions to pro"idcnl and 01her liinds (refer nolc 9) 

Compensated absences 

Gral uily [refer no\e 9 1 

Staff welfare expenses 

Employee share-based pay111c111 expe nse (refer nole 26) 

Total 

Note 16 : Firnmcc costs 

Interes t expenses - lease liabi lities measured at amortised cost 

Interest expenses 

Tota l 

Note 17 : Depreciation and a mortisa tion ex pense 

Depreciation of property. plant and eq uipment 

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 

Total 

Note 18 : AdYcrtising and promotion expenses 

Ad\'en iscme111 ex penses (refer 1101e 24) 

Business promotion expenses 

Total 

Vear ended 
March 31, 2025 

(~ in Lakhs) 

4,348.59 

16,850.51 

21, 199.1 0 

Year ended 
March 31, 2025 

(tin Lakhs) 

20 1.87 

15 1 

(5.22) 

24.66 

2. 13 

224 ,95 

Vear ended 

~larch 31, 2025 
(~ in Lakhs) 

4,009.72 

137 .78 

54.20 

46.26 

I 97 .51 

237.08 

4,682.55 

Yea r ended 
March 3 I, 2025 

(t in Lakhs) 

93. 16 

0. 14 

93,30 

Year ended 

March 31 , 2025 
(~ in Lakhs) 

125 .80 

11 6.70 

242,50 

Year ended 
March 31, 2025 

(tin Lakhs) 

13, 14 5.3 1 

0.69 

13,146,00 

Vear ended 
March 31, 2024 

(~ in Lakhs) 

2,943.62 

2,943.62 

Year ended 
March 31 , 2024 

(~ in Lakhs) 

3. 72 

3. 02 

5.68 

I 6.35 

0.97 

0.93 

18.27 

48,94 

Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
(~ in Lakhs) 

2,027.46 

107. 13 

36.94 

6.07 

38.2 1 

2,2 15,81 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

(~ in Lakhs) 

99.4 1 

0.25 

99,66 

Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
(~ in Lakhs) 

93.35 

11 6.70 

2 10,05 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

(t in Lakhs) 

0. 16 

0.1 6 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial s tatements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 19 : Network and internet expenses 

Internet and server charges 
Communication expenses 
Total 

Note 20 : Other cx11enses 

Electricity and water expenses 

Legal and professional charges 

Rent expenses 

Repair and maintenance - others 

Travelling and co 11 \'cya11cc 

Recruitment expenses 

Rates and taxes 

Insurance 

Payment gateway charges 

Printing and stationc11• 

Postage and courier expense 

Payment to auditors 

As Auditor· 

Audit fee 

Bank charges 

Training and seminar 

Office expense 

Int ellectual property rights fees (refer note 24) 

Foreign cuffcncy exchange loss 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Tota l 

Vear ended Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(t iu Lakhs) (t in Lakhs) 

34.36 2.04 
302 .19 4.74 
336.55 6.78 

Year ended Year ended 
~larch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(tin Lakhs) (~ in Lakhs) 

3.17 0.54 

139.'18 26.8 1 

67.54 

32 . I 3 3.48 

I 8.57 5.08 

12.42 22 .93 

6.66 5.67 

40 .38 8.96 

620.95 

2.46 2.17 

0.97 

14 .86 5.55 

2.78 0.66 

0.73 

70 .68 13.92 

45 1.69 

0 .94 

122 1 
1,498.62 95.77 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note: 2l(a) Income tax expense 

(i) fncome tax expense 

Particulars 

Cun-ent tax 

Current tax on profits for the year 

Total cun-ent tax expense 

Defen-ed tax 

Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets 

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 

Income tax expense 

Yea,· ended 
March 31, 2025 

(z in Lakhs) 

186.41 

186.41 

186.41 

(ii) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting p.-ofit multiplied by fndia's tax rate: 

Particulars 

Proif before tax 

Tax at the indian tax rate of25 .168% (March 31 , 2024 - 25.168%) 

Business losses,unabsorbed depreciation and other temporary differences on which 
deferred tax not recognised 

Tax on earlier year 

Effect of tax rates difference in foreign jurisdiction 

others 

Income tax expense 

Year ended 
March 31, 2025 

(z in Lakhs) 

1,424.53 

359.00 

26.95 

(39.66) 

(157.83) 

(2.05) 

186.41 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

(z in Lakhs) 

130.54 

130.54 

130.54 

Yeai· ended 
March 31, 2024 

(z in Lakhs) 

364.33 

91.69 

42.13 

(3.28) 

130.54 



!call Support Se1·vices P.-iva te Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Ma rch 31 , 2025 

Note: 21(b) Defcn-ed tax assets 

a) Deferred tax assets (Net) 

Particulars 
Deferred tax liab ility 
De ferred tax assets* 
Net deferred tax asset / (li ability) 

* Delc1Tcd tax assets have been recognised only to the extent of deferred tax liabi lities 

b) Co mponents of deferred tax assets 

Particulars 

Property, plant and equipment 
Provisions 
Unwinding of discount measured at amortised cost 
Lease liabi lities 
Others 
Total 

c) Components of deferred tax liabi lit)' 

Particulars 

Unrealised gain on securt iti es carried at li1i r value through profit or loss/other comprehensive income 
Right-to-use assets 
Total 

(d) Unused tax losses and unrecognised temporary differences: 

Particulars 
Deductible temporary differences 

Potential tax benefi t @ 25 . 168% 

As at 
March 31 , 2025 

(t in Lakhs) 
( 182.49) 
182.49 

As at 
Ma rch 31, 2025 

(tin Lakhs) 

26.3 1 
24. 13 

5.03 
224 .56 

19.6 1 
299.63 

As at 
Ma rch31,2025 

(tin Lakhs) 

(13 1) 
183 .80 
182.49 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

(t in Lakhs) 
465 .45 
465.45 

117.15 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

(t in Lakhs) 
(2 14.60) 
2 14.60 

As a t 
M:u·ch 31 , 2024 

(t in Lakhs) 

26. 14 
14.44 
5.4 1 

242.24 
16.57 

304.80 

As at 
March 31 , 2024 

(tin Lakhs) 

1.43 
2 13.17 
2 14.60 

As a t 
March 31 , 2024 

(t in Lakhs) 
358.39 
358.39 

90.20 

Note: During the year ended March 3 1, 2025 , the Company does not have any accumulated business losses (year ended March 3 1, 2024 - Nil). 



lcall Support Services Private Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 22 : Earnings per share 

Pa rticu la rs 

Basic and diluted 

Profit attributab le to Equity Shareholders (z in Lakhs) 

Weighted average number of shares of z I 00 each outstanding 

Basic Earnings per share (in z) 

Diluted Earnings per share (i n z) 

The Co mpany does not have any o utstanding potential di lutive equity shares. 

A 

B 

A/B 

A/B 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31 , 2025 March 31 , 2024 

1,238.12 233.79 

471,680 182,365 

262.49 128.20 

262.49 128.20 



!call Suppo1·t Services Pl'iva tc Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial st atements for 1he year ended i\•brch 31, 2025 

Note 23 : Interests in olher entities 

Subsidial'ics 

lh: subsid1anes m the Group as at March 31. 2025 arc s..:t out bc lo\\" Unkss ot h..:rw1se stated. they ha\'e share capital co11s1stmg solely of eqwty shares that ;rn.: hdd din:ctly by the Parent entity, 
and the proportion of O\\llership interests hdd equa ls the vo11ng right s lidd by the Parent entity ll1e Country of mcorporation or n:gis tration is also their principal pbcc of busi ncss . 

Name of Entity 

Gcncsis Group Limited (we r from !\·fay 17. 
2024) 

Policybaz.1a r Middle Ea.st Insurance Brokers 
LLC (Erst,\hik, Gen~--s is Insurance Brokcrs 
LLC) (Su bsid1a~· ofGencs is Group Limitcd) 
(\\ e f. from l\lay 17. 202-1) 

Place of Ownership intci-ests held by the Ownership interest held by non-

Business/Country off-____ g_rnr"-l' ____ +---'°-"_1'_0_11i_ng~in_tc_cc_,_" __ 
4

Principal Activilies 

Inco rporation 

UAE 

As at 

i\1:1rch 31. 2025 
% 
100 

100 

Asat 
i\farch J 1, 202~ 

% 

As:11 As at 
i\ 1:trch JI. 2025 March 31. 2024 

kbcl Ali Fro.: Zone Offshore Company. primarily 
engaged in commercial and inn:s lmcnt in other 
cmitics activi ties , and is the holding company of 
Polic~ b:u.aa.r Middle East Insurance Brokers LLC 
(fom1crl~-Gcnesis lnsur::mcc Orokers LLC) 

Liccnse,finsur.mcc broka. icngagcd in prm·iding 
insur.mce brob:r services 



lrnll Support Services Private Limilcd 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements fo1· the yca1· c.ndt·d l\forch 31, 2025 

Note 24: Related riarty tr:insactions 

Disclosures in accord:tnC\! with the rcqmrcmcnts of IND AS - 24 on Related Pany Disclosures. as 1dcn1ifit·d by the management arc set out as below 

(a) N;uncs of Related rarties :md nature of relationship: 

(i) Ultimate Holding Compan)' 

PB Fin1ech Limited 

(ii) where control exi sts 

Subsidiary Company: Gen..:sis Group Limited (w.e.f from l\lay 17. 2024 ) 

Indirect Subsidiary Company: Policyba.zaar Middle East Insurance Brokers LLC (Erst11l11k Genesis 
lnsuranc..: Brokers LLC) (Subsidiary of Genesis Group Limi1ed) (we f from J\1::iy 17. 2024) 

(iii) Other related Parties with whom transactions have tak('ll place: 

Fellow Subs idi:1rics: 

Pai sabaz.1.:ir Marh:ting and Consulting Privatc Limitt·d 

PO Fintcch FZ LLC (Foreign Company) 

Policyb:tz.'.lar Insurance llrok..:rs rri\'atc Limited 

Key Management Personnel: 

Mr. Yashish Dahiya , Din:ctor 

~tr Alok Bansal , Director (till Fcbrnary 28, 2025 ) 

!\fr. Manoj Sha.m1a. Director 

(b) Group transactions with relntcd parties 

·111c following transactions occurred with rcl:ned pan ics 

S. No Part icu lars 

Transactions 

Subscription of equity sha,·cs of Rs . I 00 each I Refer note S(a) I 

PB Fint..:ch Limited 

Securities Premium on subscription[Rder note 8(b)I 

PB Fintcch Limited 

Telemarketing sen•icc rendered to fellow subsida ry 

PB Fintcch FZ LLC 

lntellcclua l property right s (IPR) fccs expense 

PB Fintech FZ LLC 

Advertise111cnt expenses 

PB Fintcch FZ LLC 

Employee sh:11·e-b:1scd payment expense 

PD Fintech Limited 

Cost charged by ultinwtc holding company 011 :1ccount of gr:mt of ESOPs (to employees 
of the group) 

Pll Fintcch Limited 

rurchasc of property, plan! and equipment from ultimate hol<ling/Fcllow snbsi<l iary 
compan ies 

PB Fintcch Limited 

Paisaba.z..ar Marketing and Co11sulti11g Private Lirnitcd 

Policybaz.1.ar Insurance Brokers Private Limited 

Sale of properly, plant an<l equipment to Fell ow subs idiary companies 

Paisaba.z.1ar Marketing and Consulting Pri,·atc Limited 

Polic,·ba.z.1ar Insurance Brokers Private Limited 

c) Related parties balances as :at year end 

S. No Particulars 

Balances :is at year end 

Trade payables !refer note. IO(n)I 

Paisabaza.a.r Marketing and Consulting Pnvate Limited 

Policybaza:ir Insurance Brokers Pri vate Limited 

PO Fintech FZ LLC 

Other non-currcnl liability [rdcr note 11 I 

PB Fintcch Limited 

Trade receivab les (refer note 6(b)I 

PB Fintcch FZ LLC 

O ther financia l assets - current l1·efcr nolc 6(e)] 

Policybaz.a:i.r lnsura.nc..: Brokers Pri vate Limited 

Pa.isabaz.1ar Marketing and Consuhing Pri\'atc Lin1itcd 

(~ in Lnkhs) 

Ul1imatc Holding Company / 
Fe llow Subsidiaries 

March 31, 2025 Marc h 31, 202-1 

320.00 

3.680.00 

4.348.59 

45 1.6'J 

7,307 .27 

216.94 

20. l <l 

0 .49 

14 .95 

2.56 

Ult im:1lc I lo lding Company / 
Fellow Subsidinries 

2,9-13.62 

(1827) 

0.09 

35.73 

0. 11 

3.06 

March JI. 2025 Marc h 31 . 2024 

0 11 

4 1.52 
4.613.60 

20.14 

1,885 .36 889.2 1 

3.61 

0. 13 

Note\ : Mr. Yashish Dahiva. Mr. Alok Bansa l and Mr . Manoi Sha.m1a do not take anv rcmuncrat1011 from Icall Su1mon S..:rvic..:s Private Limited. 



lcall Suppo,·t Services Private Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 25: Segment Reporting 

The group engaged in different business units including call center operations, customer management and insurance broking. 

Operating sct:,'1ncnts are rcpo11cd in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board of Directors (CODM). J\ 11 operating 
segments' results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors, who have been identified as the CODM, to assess the financia l pcrfonnancc and 
position of the Group and makes strategic decisions. 

Based on nature of seniiccs rendered, the risk and returns, internal organization and management strncturc, nature of the regulatory environment and 
the internal perfomiancc reporting systems , the management considers that the Group is organized into two reportable segments: 

a) Insurance broker services (regulated services) : This Segment consists of insurance broker services provided by the group in United Arab Emiratt.:s 
("UAE") which are regulated by Central Bank of the UAE (CBUAE) under the UA E Insurance 13rokerage Regulations 2024 . 

b) Other services: This Segment consists of call center operations provided largely to the financial services industry including insurance. 

Sumrnc111• of the segment infor·nwtion is as follows: 
If in Lakhsl 

S.No Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

I Segment revenue: 

Insurance broker services 16,850.51 -

Other services 4,348.59 2,943.62 

Total revenue 21,199.10 2,943.62 

2 Segment profit: 

Profit before finance cost and tax 

Insurance broker services 747.40 -

Other services 770.43 463 .99 

Tota l Profit before finance cost and tax 1,517.83 463 .99 

3 Interest income 

Insurance broker services 13.71 -

Other services 188. 15 3.72 

4 Depreciation and amortisation 

Insurance broker services 21.20 -

Other services 221.30 2 10 .05 

5 In come tax expense 

Insurance broker services 30.27 -
Other services 156.14 130.54 

6 Segment Assets 

Insurance broker services 7,600.67 

Other services 6,689 .86 2,848 .70 

Tota l Assets 14,290.53 2,848.70 

7 Segment liabilities 

Insurance broker sen~ccs 5,914.68 -
Other services 1,407 .26 1,349 .38 

Total liabi li ties 7,321.94 1,349.38 

8 Additions to non-current assets 

Insurance broker services 73 . 14 

Otl1er services 23.59 36.04 



lcall Su11port Services Priva te Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31 , 2025 

Note:-
1 Segment revenue is measured in the same \vay as in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. There are no inter-segment sales . 

2 Segment profit is before finance cost and income tax. 

3 Interest income includes interest income on bank deposits and income tax refund . 

4 Segment assets includes fixed assets, investments, trade receivables, cash and bank balances, other bank balance, loans, other financial asse ts 
and other asse ts and arc measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the 
segment of the assets. Intragroup receivables and payables have been eliminated . 

5 Non-cunent assets includes property, plant and equipment , right-of-u se assets, and other intangible assets. These non current assets assets are 
allocated based on the operations of the segment. lntragroup sales, purchases ofpropcny, plant , and equipment, and intangible assets have been 
eliminated, including their associated profit s and losses. 

6 The revenues of~ 4,399 .78 Lakhs attributable to the ''i_nsurance broker services" segment are derived from two external customers (March 3 1. 
2024 - ~ Nil Lakhs attributable to the "Insurance broker services" segment arc derived from two external customers) . 

7 The revenues of~ 4,348.59 Lakhs attributable to the "Other Services" segment arc derived from single external customers (March 3 1, 2024 - Z 
2,943.62 Lakhs att1ibutablc to the ''other services" segment arc derived from single external customers). 

Summary of the segment geographica l information based on location of entities is as follows: 

/~ in Lakhsl 
S.No Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

I Segment revenue: 

India 4,348 .59 2,943 .62 

UAE 16,850.51 -

Total revenue 21,199. 10 2,943.62 

2 Non-current assets 

India 865 .37 1,072 .12 

UA E 87.11 -

Total non-current assets 952.48 1,072.12 

Note:-

Segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. There arc no inter-segment sales. 

2 Non-current assets includes propc11y, plant and equipment , Right-of-use asse ts. and other intangible assets. These non current assets assets me 
allocated based on the operations of the geographical segment. lntragroup sales, purchases of proper1 y, plant , and equipment , and intangible 
assets have been eliminated, including their associated profits and losses. 



Icall Su111w1·1 Services Private Limited 
Notes to !he standalone financial slalemcnls for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Nole 26 : Share based payments 

(a) Em11loyee 0111ion plan 

PB Fintcch Lim ited (the "Parent Company") instituted the Employee Stock Option Plan(s) to grant equity based incentives to eligible employees of the Company 
and its subsidiaries. The Parent Company has four ESOP schemes, namely, Employee Stock Option Plan 2014. ("ESOP - 2014 "), Employee Stoc k Option Plan 
2020 (" ESOP - 2020"'), Employees Stock Option Plan - 2021 ("ESOP - 2021 ' ') and Employee Stock Option Plan 2024 ("ESOP - 2024 "). With an obj ecti ve to 
implement the ESOP- 2014 and ESOP- 2020, the Parent Company has f'onn ed the Etcehaces Employees Stock Option Plan Trnst (the " ESOP Trust' ") to hold or 
possess Equity Shares and subsequently allot or transfer them to employees in accordance with the tenns of the ESOP Schemes, as applicable. ESOP - 202 1 and 
ESOP - 2024 scheme is implemented and administered directly by the Parent Company. 

The options b'fanted till March 3 1, 2025 have minimum vesting period o f I year and maximum 5 years from the date of grant (Ma rch 3 1, 2024 : 1-5 yea rs) 

(i) Summary of options granted under plan: 
~l a rch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Opening Balance 

Granted dming the year 
Exercised dming the year 
forfeited/lapsed durin~ the year 
Share transfer due to transfer of employee 

Closin° Balance 

Vested and exercisable 

\Vcightcd Avcr:i gc 
exercise price per 

share option 

2 
1533 .73 

2 
2 
2 

No options expired during the periods covered in the above tables 

\Vcightcd Average 
Number of options exercise price per share 

I Refer note (ii)I option 

2 1.585 2 
.2 

(4,3 17) 2 
2 
2 

17,268 

2 

(ii) Share options outstanding at the end of year have following expiry date and exercise prices : 

Grant 

Grant 19 
Total 

Grant dale 

July 3 1. 2023 

Expiry dale 

March 3 1. 2030 

\\'cightcd average remaining contrnctu~,I life of options outstanding at end of , ,car 

(iii) Fair value of options granted : 

There were no options granted during the year ended March 31, 2025 

Exercise price 
!Refer nole (ii)I 

2 

The fair value at grant date of options granted during the year ended March 31. 2024 were as given below: 
Grant 19 (Time based vesting) - ~ 730.5 1 to~ 730.92 

Share options 
March 31, 2025 

17,268 
17,268 

5.01 Years 

Number of options 
!Refer note (ii)I 

16,:120 
2 1,585 

(16,320) 

21.585 

Shan! opt ions 
March 31, 2024 

2 1,585 

6.01 Years 

For Grant 19 (being time-based vesting Grant}, the fair value at grant date is dctcnnincd using the Black-Scholes-Merton model. The model takes into acco unt the 
exercise price, the tenn of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yie ld and the risk 
free interest rate for the tern, of the option. 

The expected p1icc volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options}, adjusted for any expected changes lo future vo latility 
due to publicly available in fonnation. 

(b) Expense .irising from share based (l.tymcnt transaction 

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense ,vcrc as follows: 

Employee option plan 

Total cmplovcc share based pavmcnt expense 

Year ended 
March 31 , 2025 

(~ in Lakhs) 

237.08 

237.08 

Yc.ar ended 
March 31, 202~ 

(tin Lakhs) 

( 1827) 

(18.27) 



lrnll Support Services Pi-ivat c Limited 

Notes to the consolidated fin:mcial sta lemcnts fo r the ye.t r l'ncled i\1arrh 3 1. 2025 

Note 27 : Fair value measurement s 

a) Finanr i.11 instntmcnt s by c:11 cgo ry 

The fo ll owing tab le shows th e carry mg amounts and fa ir value of fin ancial assl!ts and fi nancial liab ilities, including thei r levd s in the fa ir value hie rarchy. 

Finanri:11 assets 

ln\'estmcnts 
- Mutual fu nds 

Trade rl!ccivab ll!s 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Loan to enmlo,•ees 
Other financial assets 
Total 

Financial liabilities 
T radc payables 

O ther financial hab d1t1 cs 
Lease li abiliti es 
Tot:il 

b) Fa ir va lue hi cnu-rhy 

FVTPL 

l\1:lrch 31 , 2025 

(:l in Lakhs) 

FVOC I 

55 ss 

55.85 

Amortised 
cos t 

3.950.36 
6.638.22 

I. I I 
2.0 14.98 
12.604.66 

5.697.18 

453 .04 
89? .26 

7.042.48 

Fvn, 1., 

45 I 19 

451.1 9 

l\1arrh31 , 2024 

(:l in L:1khs) 

FVOCI 
Amorti s rd 

co:. t 

889.2 1 
37.19 

32.25 
959 .25 

67.55 

221. 30 
962 .50 

1.25 1.35 

This section exp lains the judgcmc111 s and esti mates made in dctl! rm1mng the fa ir va lucs of the fi nancial instruments that arc (a) rl!cogniscd and measured at fa ir va lu ~ 
and (b) meas ured at amortised cost and for whi ch fa ir values arc disclosed m 1hc fin ancial statements. To pro\~ dc an ind ication about the reliability of th !! inputs used in 
dctcm1ining fa ir value. the company has class ificd 11s financial instrumcnts into the th ree levels prescribed under the acco unting standard An explanation of each leve l 
fo llows underneath the tab le 

b) F.a i,-valuc hierarchy 

Financia l :1sscts 111c.:1s111·cd :II fair \'aluc : 

As :t1 M:irch 31 . 2025 
Fi11 a 11ci;1l asscl s 
Fuwncial bl\'csr111c111s ar FV/11/. 
Investments in mutual fun ds 

Tola l 

As a l March 31. 202~ 
Fin:111cial assets 
Financial /n n:~·1mi:11ts f1f FVIPL. 
lnvcs lmi.::nts m mutual funds 

Tolal 

No les 

6(a) 

Noles 

6(a) 

llic Group uses the fo llowing hi..:!rn rchy fo r dctermming and d1sclos111g 1hc fair value of financi:i l mslruments: 

Level I 

55 .85 

55.85 

Level I 

45 1.1 9 

451.19 

{:l" in Lakhs l 
1..c,·el 2 Level 3 T olal 

55 .85 

55_85 

Level 2 Level 3 T o tal 

451. 19 

~5L19 

Leve l I: Leve l I hier.a rchy mcludcs financial instruments mcasurl!d using quoted prices. for example lis1ed equi1y instruments. 1rndcd bonds and mu1u a1 funds th at have 
quot ed prices. 

Level 2 The fai r value of financial inslru 111ents that are not traded in an acti ve mark et (for example, over-th e-counter derivati ves) is determined using valua!ion 
techn iqu es which max imise the use of observable marke t data and rely as li11l e as possib le on ent ity-spec ific estimates . If all significant inputs required to fair vaJuc a n 
instru ment arc obse rvab le, the instru ment is in cl uded in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the signifi cant inp uts is not based on obse rvable market dala. the instrument is included in level 3. For example. un lis ted equity securities . 
CIC 

TI1ere arc no trans fe rs between levels I and 2 during the yeM. 

·111c group 's policy is 10 recogni se transfers into and transfers out of fai r value hii.::rarchy h.:vd s as at the end of the report ing period. 

c) V:1111:tl ion lcchniquc used 10 tlc lerminc f:ii1· , ·:lluc 

Speci fi c valuation lcchniqucs used 10 value financia l instruments 111clud l.! 

- the use of quoted market pri ces or mutual fund houses quotes (NA V) for such instruments. TI1is is incl uded in Level I. 

- the fair value of the unquoted investments m equi ty instruments is detcnn incd us ing one or more of the valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow analys is or 
net asset value ("' NA V") method ·nus is incl uded in Level 3 

d) Fair \'.:1lue offin:mcial a ssets :md li:1bi li lies measured :11 ;unortiscd ros t 

TI1c carrying amounts of loans . trade receivables. cash and cash equi valents , other fin ancial assets , trade payables and other financial liabilit ies arc considered to be th e 
same as their fa ir values du e to th eir short tenn nature 



kall S11111wrt Scn·iccs l'ri,·:Hc Limilcd 
Notes to the consolid;1tc1I rin;111d:1I )l"tatcments fur the ~ ear entkd 1'tal"C'h JI, 2025 

Nole 28: Fin:mcial risk :md Ca11it:1I 111:111:i~cmcnl 

A) Financial risk mana!!emcnl fr,1mcwork 

The company·s act1dlics expose 1110 market n sk. liquid11~ risk and c redn nsk 

This note explains the sources of risk \1 l11ch the e ntity is exposed to a nd l1ow the en tit~ ma nages the ri sk. 

Risk 

Crcdil risk 

Liquidity risk 

~-1:'.l rkct risk - foreign exc hange 

Price Ri sk 

Exposure arisin;.:rrom 

Cas l1 :rnd cash cq1m·.1lc111 s. trade rccc1,·:11.Jks. ot her 
rina ncial a ssc1s measured a1 a mon iscd cost 

O 1hcr fi11 :111ci a1 ltal.Jilit ies 

1'k:isu1·ement 

Agi ng analysis 

Rolling c 1sh nm1 
forecasts 

Recognised fi11:inc1.il assets a11d h;ibil it1cs 1101 dc110111111a1cd C:ash now forecasting 
in l11di a11 mpee (I NR) Scnsiti \"i ty analysis 

lm·cstmc lll S in IIILIIU;1l ft mds Credit r;11i11g 

l\f;ma~em cnt 

Di\"crsific.11io11 of ba nk 
deposits. credit limits 
and let1 ers of crcdit 

A1·aibb1li1~ of surplus 
ca sh and suppon from 

parent COllllh lllY 

Regul,u monitoring to 
keep the net exposure at 
an acceptable lc\·cl. ll"ilh 
optio 11 o f taking Forward 

foreign exchange 
cont racts if deemed 

Ponfolio dh·ersific:ition 
a nd regular 1110111to ri11g 

The company·s risk 111:magc111c n1 is c.1rricd oul by :1 ce ntral 1rcasury dl·p:1r1111cru under po licies approved by the board of directors. The treasury· identifies. c, ·aluatcs a11d hedges financial ri sks III c lose co-opcr.111011 ,111h 
1he comp:rny's ope rating units The board pro,·ides ,1rit1eu priuci ples fo r m·er:, 11 risk 111 :1 11age111em . as \\ell :1s policies co, ·cring specific a rc:,s. sucli as foreign c.-;ch:mgc risk. credit risk. ;111d 1m es1111c 111 o f e"ess liquidity. 
CIC. 

(:.i) Credit risk 
Credit risk is lhe ri sk of rinancial loss to 1he Co mpany if a customer or cou111crpan~ 10 a financial instmment fail s 10 meet its coutractual obliga tions. and ari ses p1iucipall\ from lhe Compan~ ·s rccei,·al.Jlcs from 
customers 

Tnde recci,·;1!1lcs relat ed crcdi1 risk 

The Comp;my" s exposure to credit ri sk 1s inn11c11ccd mainly by lhc i11dmd11al cha r.1e1cristics of each cus10111er. Ho1\·c1·er. rna11:1gemcnl also considers 1hc factors th:it may innuc ncc tir e cred it ri sk of its O1s1omer base. 
includiug Lile default risk of the indus1ry. A default on a financial asset is 11hen the coumc rp any fail s to make contractual payments \\ithin 90 days o r when they fall due. Thi s ddi111tio11 o f defa ult is detcnniucd b~ 
considering the business cm irnnmem in which Comp:rny opc rales :md 01hcr 111acro-cco11omic fa ctors 

Cred it qu:1l i1y of a customer is assessed based on its cred it wonhiness :md l11 storic:1I de:1lings "ith the Compa ny. market intelligence and good11 ill. Outstanding customer rccc i,·ablcs ;uc regula1ly monitored b~- the 
111a11agen1c111 

The Comp .. 111y has cs1 ablishcd an .1llow:111cc for i111pa1rme11t that rcprcsc111s H S expected cred it losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The managcmeut uses a simpliried appro:1eh fo r the purpose o r comp111:1ti ou of 
expected cred it loss for tr.idc receivables and 12-month expected credit loss for other rL-cci1·;1blcs An impaini1c11t analysis is performed al each reponing da1e on an i11di1·idual basis ro r major p:111ics The c.1 lculation is 
based on hisloric:11 data of actual losses The Comp.1ny e, -a luatcs the co nce11tra1io 11 of risk. with respect to trade rccei,·ablcs :is low. 

Trade rccei,·ables arc writtc11 o!T ,1 l1e11 1l1crc is no reaso11.1ble cxpcc1a1io11 of rcco,·e11 

Prorisim, for o.pcd .:d c:r.:dit lu.~5.:s 

The Co1110.1m· ornl'idcs fo r cxocctcd credit loss 1.Jascd 011 the followin c 

Dc.scri111ion or cale!!on· Basis for rcco!!nitio11 of expected cretlit loss 11rm·isi11n 

Assets wl1crc 1he cou11tcr-pan~ 

lligh qu:1li1y assets. neglig ible cred it risk ~~~i~;1\
1
~:

1
1~sc:;1\'~

1
~:\~·et~ 

1
:1
1
: c~i~~e 

of default 1s ucgligihle or nil 

Qua lit~· assets. low credit risk 

\'car ended !\larch JI. 2U2S: 

Asscts whcrethereis low risk 
or default .111d where the 
counter-pa rty h;1s s11ffi ciem 
capacity to mcc1 the oblig;1ti ons 
and where there has bee n low 
frequency of defaul ts in the past 

(al E:mcctcd credit loss for sccurit, tlcnosits & loans to emnlo,·ccs: 

Pilr1iculars 

Sccuri1y tlepusits 

I 2-1110111h e:-.: pcc1cd credit 
loss 

Dcscri 1tion of catcoon· 
Assets where the 

co11111crparty has stroug 

Loss allowance measured a t 12 111011th Hi gh <111:11i1y assets. nq; l1 gible ca~1city to meet \he 

Loan s lo em11lo~1ccs 

12-rnouth cxpccled 
credit loss 

Security deposits 

Tratlc rccei,·ahlcs 

Lifetime expccled crcdil 
losses 

Estim:itcd t•ross 

3-U6 

(tin Lakhsl 
E:i 1ec1cd 1rohahilit,· Ex 1cctctl credit C:irn-iu" :1mount 

0 .00%, 

expected credit losses c redit risk oblig:11ions a11d where the r----------1----------1~-----+----------,f-------< 
risk of default is 
negligible or nil 

(bl Lifetime e:mcctetl credit loss for tratlc 1·eceh·abl cs untler ~·imulified :111oroach: 

Par1icul :trs/Agcing 

Gross carrying amount- trade rccciv:1blcs 

Gross c mying amou111 - Unbilled rcYcm1c 

Expected loss rate 

Expected credit losses (Loss a llowance 
pro\"i sio 11)- trade receivables 

Carrying amounl of trade recci,·ahlcs 
(net of im11ain11ent) 

Not Due 0-90 d;1ys 11ast due 

xu.i .10 

3.u:;1,90 

U.00'1/., 0.00% 

J ,HJ6.6U 

Loans lo employees 

0 .00% 

111 0 .0U% 

IHl-270 da~·li 11:.ist tlue 271-J(iU days 11ast due 

!02.75 

0.00% 0.00% 

102.75 

More than ]60 

d:l'"s 1ast due 

11.Ul 

U.{)0'1/., 

11.(JI 

1.11 

(f in bkhs) 

Tot :11 

9 1HA6 

J,1131.90 



kall Su1111ort Sc1"'·iccs Pri,·:itc Limitctl 
Notes to the rnmmlidatcd fi11:ind:1I sl;1tcmc11ts for· Che ,c,ircndcd Man:h JI. 2025 

\'co1r ended March JI. 202~ : 

(a) Ex11cctcd cred it loss for sccurit~ dcposil~ & loan s 10 c11111lo~ccs: 

(? in Ltkhs) 
P:irticulars Descri 1tio11 or catc 11on· Asscl uroun Est imat ed 2ros11 F.x 1cctcd 1rohahi lit,· [:i:11ccccd cred it C.1n"\inn :,mount 

Assets where the 

countcrpan~ has suong 

Loss :illm1:111ce mcnsured al 12 month Hi gh qu:1111~ assets. 11cglig1blc c.ipacil~ lo 111cc1 Ilic 
Security deposits 28 .5 1 U.CJO'¼, 28 5 1 

c,pcc1cd crcdi1 losses c redit risk obligations and where 1hcf----------,----------,-------+------f-------l 
riskofdcrauh is 
negligible or nil 

(h) Urctimc n:11cctcd credit loss for 1r:11Je receil":1hlcs under li im11lified a 11111·0:1ch: 

Particu lars/A::tci ng 

Gross c.urying amount• trade rcce1\"ablcs 

Gross c.ur:mg a111011 n1- Unbilled re, ·cnuc 

Expected loss ra1c 

Expcc1ed c redit losses (Loss allm1~111cc 
pro,·is1ou)- 1r.1de rccci,~1blcs 

C:.11·r")·in~ amoun l or trade r ccei,·:1hks 
(net or impai nncnt) 

Not Due ll-'JO d :1~ 11 p:tst due 

88'} 2 1 

000% 

l\li'J.21 

Lo:ins 10 emplorccs 

9 1- IMU da~ s p:1sl due 

0 .00% 

The foll owing t:.blc s11m111:1ri,.cs the ch,1111-:c i11 l,1ss :1ll,11,,,11cc 111c.1!< 11 1"1:<l ll !< in;; tl1c life ti111<:: cxp, .. <t:k <l crL'< lit Jo..._--: 11100d: 

r;1r1icul:1n Amounl (f) 

Los11 allowance on March JI. 2U2J 
Changes in loss allowance 
Loss :.allow:i.ncc on l\1arrh JI . 2112..C 
Chan ~es in loss a llowance 
Loss .1llowancc on J\1.irch 31. 21125 

Trc:1sur)· related credit risk 

00()'1/., 

0 .00% 

More th:m 3 6 0 
tla, s 1ast due 

(Ult1% 

(:t in L:i l;hsl 

Tola l 

liX'J.21 

Credi! risk on c.,sh and c., sh cq111valcnts and other deposits ,1 11h b.:1111-s 1s limned as the Compa ny gcnc1:1lly i1wcs1 111 deposits \\i th b:mks wil h hibh credit r.iu ug.s assigned b~ c." cmal credit ratrng agcurn:s. a,.xmdmg l~ 
the Company considers that the related credit risk 1s lo,, lmpamne nt on these 11cms arc measured on the 12-1110111h expected c rcdil loss OOsis 

Liquidity risk is the risk 1hat the Comp;rn~ will e ncounter d1ffia 1lty 111 meeting the obllg:111011s :1ssoc1a1ed \\ith its fiuancial liabilities that ;ire settkd by dcln c ring cash o r anothe r fi11a11c1al assc1 The Comp:111~ ·s appro:1ch 

to managing liquidity is 10 ensure. as for as possible. 1h:u 11 "111 have sufficient liqu idity to meet its li abil ities ,1hcn they arc due. under both normal :ind stressed condit ions. without incumng un;icccprablc losses o r risk mg 
d:imabC to 1he Compauy·s reputation 

.\/atuntw., o( fimm cml liabil,t1('S 

The lablcs below ana lyse the co11111anr's fin:111c1:1I l1 :ibi l111 cs 11110 1clc,·au1 111a1uri1,· }-( ro11p i11 i:!S based on lhcir con1ractu:il m:iruritics for: 
:l) all 11011-dcri\"ati \"e financial liabilities. and 
b) 11c1 and gross sc11lcd dcrivnli\"c finand:il i11stmmc111 s for 11h1c h the cor111:ic1ual m.11unt1cs arc essc 111ial for an understanding of the 1iming of 1l1e c.1sh nows 

The amounts di sc losed in the 1able arc the cou1r:1ctual u11d1scou11tcd c.,sh OO\\ S ll:1l:111ccs due \\llhlll 12 1110111hs equa l the ir ca~"ing b:ilanccs as the imp;:1ct of d1sco1111ting 1s 1101 sig nific-;1111 

Co ntractual m ;llurities or fiu :rnci:11 li;ahil i1ics: 

M ardi JI. 2025 

Nu11-d('ri,·a1i\·cs 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabih11cs 

Le ase liabilities 

/\1:irch JI, 202..C 

Non-dcri,·a1i,·cs 

Tr:1de payables 

01 l1erfi 11a11cia lli :1bi lit ics 

Lc.,se liabilities 

Markel ri~k 

t110 t , ·c:1r 

5.6•17. JX 

..C 53 0~ 

17 1.SX 

6.J21.79 

6 7.55 

221.)U 

163 .-' 1 

More lh:1 11 I ,·car !\tor e t h:.1n 5 ,cars 

776 .--'9 27-UX 

776A'J 27..C.JH 

739.52 

7)9.52 

t-.farkct risk is the nsk 1h.11 the foir \"alue of future cash Oo\\S of a financ1:i l 111stn1111cn1 will nuctu.1te because of cha nges 111 m.1rkct prices 

(lb. in L:1khs) 

To1:1I 

5,6•17 IX 

453 .U..C 

1.222 ...C S 

7,372.67 

67.5 5 

Z2 l .30 

UX5.X7 

1,67..C.72 

The Comp.111y·s e.'q1osurc to securities price n sk arises fr o m im·estmcnt.s held III mutual fonds and classified in 1he b..1 la11ce sheet al fa ir value through p1ofi1 or loss. To 111.111:ige i1s pnce risk a rismg flom suc h 111, ·cst mc nts. 
the Comp.1ny di\'crsifics ils portfolio. Fur1hc1 these :ire :1II dct,t tx,sc securities for which the cx1>0sure is primarily 011 accounl of inlcrest rate risk. Quotes (NAV) of these im·cstmc nts arc :l\·a il:tblc fro m 1hc 111u1u:1I fund 

houses. Profit for 1hc ~car \1ould incrcasc/dccre:1sc as a resul! or g., ins/lossc.s on these securities classified :1s at fair \"a luc lhrough profit or loss 

Ca11it.1l m.1nat!emcnt 

The Company's objccth·cs "hen 111m1.1ging c.,p1tnl is to sarcgu:ird its ab1li1y 10 co111111ue as a going concern , so th:it they ca n continue to pronde returns for sha,eholdcrs a nd benefits for 01hcr s1akcholders The cap1t:il o r 
the Company cousist of equity capital and accun111\:i1cd profits 



lcall Support Services Prh·ate Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended !\larch Jl , 2025 

Note 29: Disclosure of additional information pertalninl! to the parent comp:mJ', subsidiaries and assoclales as per Schedule Ill of Comp:mles Act, 2013 (Dh'lslon II) : 

Net Assels i.e. tolal assels minus 
Share In Profit or (loss) 

total Liabllilles 

Name or the entity In the Group 
Aso/. or As•1.or 

consolidated net 
Amount 

consolidated 
Assets 

~ in Lakhs) 
profit /(loss) 

Parent Company: 

Icall Support Services Prh·ale Lim.lied 

March 31, 2025 86.79% 6,047.91 42.08% 

Foreign subsidiaries: 

Genesis Group Limited (w.e.f. from May 17, 2024) 

March 31, 2025 9.77% 680.51 0.00% 

Polkybanrnr Middle East Insurance Brokers LLC 
(Ersh\'hile, Genesis Insurance Brokers LLC) (Subsidiary of 
Genesis Group Limited) (w.e. f. from !\fay 17, 2024) 

March 3 1, 2025 24.19% 1.685.99 57.92% 

Non-Controllins: Interest 

March 31, 2025 0.00% 0.00% 

Adjustment due lo consolidation 

March 31, 2025 ( l ,445.S2) 

Total 

March 31, 2025 100¼ 6,96S.59 1001/, 

Note I: Percentage has been determined before considering elimination/ adjustments arising out of consolidation. 

Note 2: Consolidation eliminations/ adjustments include intcrcompany eliminations , consolidation adjustments. 

Amount 
(l in Lakhs) 

52 1.01 

717.1 1 

1,238. 12 

Share In other comprehensln 
lncome/(loss) 

As •;, of consolidated 
other comprchensi\'l' 

Amo unt 

incomc/(loss) 
(tin Lakhs) 

-22.20% (3.1 6) 

0.00% 

122.24% 17.37 

0.00% 

100•1. 14.21 

Share in total comprehensin 
lncome/(loss) 

As •;. or consolidated 
total comprehensln 

Amount 

lncome/(loss) 
({ in Lnkhs) 

41.35% 517.85 

0.00% 

58.65% 734.48 

0.00% 

100¼ 1,252.33 



k;1II S11111101·1 Sen·ices P.-iv:11c Limllcd 

Noles lo lhc consolidalcd financi:t l s1atcmc111s for lhc ye:ir ended 1\1:u·ch 31. 2025 

Note 30: Business comllinations 

Acquisit ion dnr-ing lhc yc.ir ended l\l:an·h 3 1. 2025: 

(;1) Su mmary of :icqu isi lion 

During the year endcd r,.,farch 31. 2025, Compan y acqu ired 100% shares of Genesis Group Limited. which holds di rectly 49% and 111d1rcctly through a nominee 
shareholder 5 1 % of Po l1 cybaz.;1ar Middle East lnsurnnce Brokers LLC (Erstwhi le, Genesis Insurance Brokers LLC) thereby making Genes is Gro up L1m1ted and 
Policybaz1ar Midd le E,1st Insurance Brokers LLC (Erstwhile. Genesis Insurance Brokers LLC) subs idiaries of the Company This acqu1s i11 on 1s a pan of Group st rategic 

in vestments. that will allow the Group to expand offerings ofUAE products to UAE based customers 

Det:1 ils oflhc purchase cons ider;Hion, 1he nel .isscls acq ui1·ed ;rnd goodwi ll :u-c ,1s fo llows: 

(i) Purclrnse considcralion 

P.trticulan: 

Cash paid 

Total purchase considerntion 

(ii) T he asse ls :md li:1bililies recognis<'d :1 s 01 1·csulf of lhe acq uisition ;1re :,s follows: 

P.11·1icul:1rs 

Assets 

Propcny. Planl & Equ,pmcnl 

Non currect other llnanc1al assets (Dcpos1l with the m1111 stry of econom y. U,\E) 

Trade rccc1vablcs 

Cash and cash cqmva lcnts 

Other current assets 

Liabililies 

Trade payab les 

Other current \1ab1ht1cs 

Prov1s1ons 

Ncl idcntifi:1blc :isscts :1cqukcd 

(iii) Calcul:11ion of Goodwill 

Par1ic11l:1rs 

Considcr.uion transferred 

Less . Net 1dcnt1fiablc assc1s acquired 

Goodwill 

The goodwi ll is attributab le to the value of expected synergies arising from the acqu, sitton It wi ll not be deductible for tax purposes 

Significam _1 11dscmc111 

(i) Acqui1·cd 1·ecciv:1hlcs 

(~ in Lakhs) 

Policyh:1:r.:1:1.r Middle [;1st 
Insurance Broker~ LLC 

903.J I 

903.3 1 

(tin Lakhs) 

Policylrn:t.:1:1r Middle East 
lnsur:mce Brokers LLC 

35 25 

68 1 96 

1,304 02 

3,404 97 

48.0> 

(4,602 07) 

(103 47) 

(3 .41) 

765.29 

(tin L:ikhs) 

Policy lrnz:1:1r Middle E:1s1 
lnsur:m cc Brokers LLC 

903 3 I 

(765.29) 

138.02 

The fai1 va lue of acquired trade receivables is t I ,304.02 Lakhs with respect to Po\i cyb~t7...aar Middle East Insurance Brokers LLC The gross contractua l amount for trade 
receivables due is ~ 1,304 .02 L1khs w11h a loss allowance on Ni l 

(ii) Revenue :md profil con lribution 

If the acquisitmn had taken place at the beginning of the year. revenue wou ld have been lugher by ~ 1.53 5.17 Lakhs and the profit before tax of the Group \\'Ould have 
been higher by~ 29.43 Lakhs from the date of acqu isition , Po licybazaar Midd le East Insurance Brokers LLC has contributed~ 16,850.5 1 Lakhs of revenue• and { 

747.40 Lakhs ofprollt~ to the 11rofit before tax of the Group. 

•Gross off inter•company eliminati ons 

There were no acqui si tions 1n the )'Car ended M:uch 3 1. 2024 

(b) Purclmsc considcrnt ion • c:ish ou10ow/(inflow) 

P;1r ticul:1rs 

Ou1now of cash to acquire subsidiaries. ncl of cash acquired 

Cash consideration 

Less: Cash and other bank balances acquired 

Ncl c:tsh (inflow) on 11cq11is ition 

Note: lcall has not mcurrcd any acquis ition re lated costs with respect to above. 

(t in Lakhsl 

PoliC)'b:1:t.:1ar l\liddle E:1sl 
lnsurnncc Brokers LLC 

903.3 1 

3,404.97 

(2,501.66) 



lcall Su11port Services Private Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements fo,· the yc,11· ended March 31 , 2025 

Note 31 : Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III 

(i) Oet:1ils of Bena mi Property held 
No proceedings have been initi ated on or are pending against the Company for holding benarn i property under the Bcnami T ransactions (P rohi bition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and Rules made thereunder. 

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets 
The group has no borrowings rrom banks or financial insti tutions on the bas is of security of current assets during the current or prev ious financ ial year. 

(iii) Wilful defaulter 
None of the entities in the group have been dec lared wilful defaulter by any bank or financ ial institution or government or any government authority. 

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies 

The Group has no balances outsta nding/ transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 20 13 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 
1956 as at and fo r the year ended March 3 I, 2025 and March 3 1, 2024. 

(v) C ompliance with number of layers of compa nies 
The group has complied with the num ber or layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 20 13. 

(vi) Compliance with approved schcmc(s) of arningements 
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year. 

(vii) Undisclosed income 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or prev ious year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 1, th at has not been 
record ed in the books of account. 

(viii) Details of crypto currency or virtu al rurrency 
The group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 

(ix) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset ,rnd investment property 

The gro up has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangi ble assets or both during the current or previous year. 

(x) The Group do not hold any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favo ur or the 

lessee). 

(xi) The Grou p has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parti es (as defin ed under Companies Act 
2013 ), either severally or jointly w ith any other person which are repayable on demand or without speci fy ing any terms o f repayment. 

Note 32: Utilisation of borrnwed funds and share premium 

(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or in vested fund s to any other person(s) or entily( ies), includ ing foreign entities (Intermediari es) w ith the understanding 
that the Intermediary shall : 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate Benefic iaries) or 
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate benefici ari es 

(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including fore ign entities (Funding Party ) with the understanding (whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall : 

(i) di rectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on bchalr of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiari es) or 

(ii ) provide any guarantee, security or the like on bchalf orthe ultimate benefi ciaries 

Note 33 : Transfer pricing 

The Company has established a comprehensive system or maintenance of information and documents as required by the trans fer pricing legislation under secti ons 92-
92F of the Income Tax Act, 196 1. ror this purpose, the Company has appointed an independent consultant for conducting a Transfer Pricing study (the ' study' ) fo r the 
Assessment Year 2025-26. In the unlikely event that any adjustment is requ ired consequent lo completion or the stud y for the year ended March 3 1, 2025, the same 

would be made in the subsequent year. However, management is of the opinion that its international transactions are al arm 's length so th at the aforesa id legislation w ill 
not have any impact on the financial statements, particul arly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation . 



lcall Su1>port Services Private Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 34 : Events occurring after the reporting period 

a) These financial statements were approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 12, 2025.

Dheeraj Mehta 

Partner 

Membership No. 504305 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: May 12, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Yashish Dahiya 

Director 

DIN : 00706336 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: May 12, 2025 
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Manoj Sharma 

Director 

DIN : 02745526 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: May 12, 2025 
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